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This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is
available on the Company’s website at www.cocoon.holdings (the
“Company Website”).

Shareholders who have chosen or have been deemed consented
to receive the corporate communications of the Company (the
“Corporate Communications”) via the Company Website and who
for any reason have difficulty in receiving or gaining access to the
annual report posted on the Company Website will promptly upon
request be sent the annual report in printed form free of charge.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of the means
of receipt (either in printed form or via the Company Website)
and/or language(s) (either English only or Chinese only or both
languages) of Corporate Communications.

Shareholders may send their request to receive the annual report in
printed form, and/or to change their choice of the means of receipt
and/or language(s) of Corporate Communications by notice in
writing to the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17M Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong or
by sending an email to the branch share registrar of the Company
in Hong Kong at cocoon.ecom@computershare.com.hk.

Shareholders who have chosen to receive printed copy of the
Corporate Communications in either English or Chinese version
will receive both English and Chinese versions of this annual
report since both languages are bound together into one booklet.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Cocoon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) takes pleasure in
presenting the audited consolidated results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (“Reporting Period”).

Since early 2020, the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease
2019 (the “COVID-19”) has spread throughout the world. Every
countries had implemented different levels of disease prevention
measures, including lockdown and quarantine policies. The
COVID-19 outbreak has adversely affected business and
economic activities worldwide significantly. Hang Seng Index
dropped substantially from the peak of 29,174 points in January
2020 to the bottom of 21,139 points in March 2020. Nevertheless,
the Hang Seng Index have dramatically ramped back up following
steep declines closed at 27,231 points on the last trading day of
the year 2020.

However, the external environment is of high relevance to
the economy and financial market in Hong Kong. In term of the
economic setback of Hong Kong and slow growth projection
of China and the COVID-19 outbreak is not abated, the Group
expects it is full of challenges in 2021.

The Group expected COVID-19 outbreak will continue to
affect the Group’s financial performance for the coming year.
The Group will closely monitor the development of the COVID-19
outbreak and continue to evaluate its impact on our business,
financial position and operating results.

Looking ahead to the year 2021, the Company will stay in
focus to invest in trading securities, private equity funds and
private enterprises with potential prospect. Our approach will keep
timely and appropriate investment strategies in response to the
volatile market, in order to enhance our investment portfolio and
achieve net asset appreciation. The Board will pay close attention
to the macro trends and keep seeking opportunities to invest in
China, Hong Kong and overseas. The Company will continue
to implement its risk management policy with an aim to achieve
stable returns on investments for our shareholders.
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Lastly, | would like to thank our dedicated employees for their
invaluable contributions and enthusiasm in their work. Their zeal
in discharging duties and responsibilities will ensure the success
of our Group.

Wu Ming Gai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March, 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
a revenue of HK$8,105,000 as compared to HK$8,988,000 in
the prior year, representing a decrease of approximately 9.82%.
The decrease in revenue was mainly due to decrease of interest
income during the year. The Group recorded a realised gain of
HK$728,000 (2019: realised loss HK$9,903,000) and fair value
gain of HK$12,105,000 (2019: fair value loss HK$9,025,000) on
listed securities held by the Group during the year. The Group
recorded a net realised loss of approximately HK$1,746,000
(2019: HK$1,845,000) on unlisted convertible bonds, which
included disposed an unlisted convertible bond as part of
consideration to acquire a loan note, which caused the Group
recorded a realised gain on disposal of approximately HK$329,000
during the year. During the year, impairment losses of various
loan notes of approximately HK$11,931,000 (2019: HK$2,598,000)
and deposits and other receivables of approximately
HK$1,592,000 (2019: HK$538,000) were recognised. During the
year, the loss on disposal of certain loan notes was approximately
HK$3,615,000 (2019: HK$2,064,000). With the favourable
performance of certain publicly traded securities held by the
Group and fair value gain of certain unlisted securities during
the year, the Group recorded loss attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$4,166,000 as compared to a loss
of approximately HK$35,361,000 in prior year.

As at 31 December 2020, the net assets of the Group were
approximately HK$162,750,000 (2019: HK$165,716,000). The net
assets slightly decreased 1.79% when compared to prior year.
The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss increased
from approximately HK$26,806,000 as at 31 December 2019 to
approximately HK$46,944,000 as at 31 December 2020 and the
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
of approximately HK$30,600,000 (2019: HK$29,400,000) was
recognised during the year.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had available funds of
approximately HK$7,905,000 which were mainly placed in banks
as general working capital. Bank balances held by the Group were
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group had shareholders’ funds of approximately
HK$162,750,000 at 31 December 2020 compared to
HK$165,716,000 at 31 December 2019, representing a decrease
of approximately 1.79%.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group had borrowings of
approximately HK$21,845,000 (2019: HK$22,268,000). The
gearing ratio for the Group was 13.4% (2019: 13.4%) which
represents the ratio of the Group’s borrowings to the net asset
value of the Group.

The Group did not have any capital expenditure commitment
as at 31 December 2020.

The Company has no change in the Group’s capital structure
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

There was no fund raising activity for the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2020.
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As at 31 December 2020, detailed breakdown and description
of the utilisation of the net proceeds from the rights issue (the
“Rights Issue”) completed on 21 October 2019 were as follows:

The unutilised net
proceed as at

R-FB-_EBF+-_H=+—R8B R-_F-AF+
A+ —BERHR(THKRDAEFRAFEREHA
MEABREAWT

Intended use of net

Date of announcement Event 31 December 2019 proceeds Actual use of proceeds
BE_T-NF+-A
=t+—BERZHAE
NGl £ HIRER PREFIRFEETE R REFIAERAR
18 July 2019 (completed  Rights Issue on the basis of Approximately (i) Approximately (i) Approximately HK$17.6

on 21 October 2019) two Rights Shares at the HK$30,000,000
subscription price HK$0.28
per Rights Shares for every

one existing Share

—NWEELtA+NB (R ZEEABRHRE—KRRERMA 430,000,000 7T
—NETRA=+— EERRERRD  REE
HEMX) AFRERE50.28/8TH

1/\ X

Note 1: The expected timetable for fully utilising the unutilised net
proceeds is determined based on the Group’s best estimate of
future market conditions, and is subject to change depending on
current market conditions and future market developments.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT

HK$24.5 million for the
investment in listed
securities and unlisted
securities

Approximately HK$5.5
million for general
working capital of the
Group
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million was used to
invest in listed and
unlisted securities,

the balance HK$6.9
million will be utilised as
intended within next 12
months of the date of
this report

Approximately HK$3.8
million was used for
operating expenses,
the balance HK$1.7
million will be utilised as
intended within next 12
months of the date of
this report
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Note 2: The Company had resolved to change in use of the remaining net
proceeds from the Rights Issue (the “Remaining Proceeds”): (a)
approximately HK$24.5 million with the intention to apply such
amount towards investment in listed and unlisted securities (i) in
provision of internet of things and internet services industry; (ii)
high-tech industry; (iii) in life sciences industry; (iv) medical; (v)
healthcare; (vi) pharmaceutical; (vii) banking and finance sector;
and (viii) energy industry; and (b) approximately HK$5.5 million
for working capital of the Group. The reason for change in use of
the Remaining Proceeds as the Board considered that the above-
mentioned industries will be benefited from the change in social
behavior and the economic environment and the market price of
certain listed securities in banking and finance sector and also
energy sector were comparatively low due to oversold as well. The
details for change in use of the Remaining Proceeds were set out
in the announcements of the Company dated 18 May 2020 and 25
November 2020.

Note 3: Details of the Rights Issue were set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 18 July 2019, 30 July 2019, 2 August 2019,
13 August 2019, 13 September 2019 and 18 October 2019; the
circular of the Company dated 21 August 2019; and the prospectus
of the Company dated 25 September 2019.

The Company is an investment company listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock
Exchange") under Chapter 21 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. The
principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the Group is principally engaged in investments in securities
listed on recognised stock exchanges and unlisted investments
with potential for earning growth and capital appreciation. It is
the corporate strategy of the Group to strengthen its existing
businesses and continue its focus on financing future investment
opportunities domestically and internationally to achieve financial
growth for the Group and to maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Company held thirteen investments as of 31 December
2020, comprising eight equity securities listed in Hong Kong and
United States of America (the “US”), four loan notes issued by
private entities in the PRC and one item of interests in a private
entity in Anguilla. Pursuant to the requirements stipulated in Rule
21.12 of the Listing Rules, the Company discloses its ten largest
investments and all individual investments with value exceeding
5% of the Company’s gross assets with brief description of the
investee companies are provided in the notes 22 to 24 to the
consolidated financial statements of this report and the section
under “significant investments held and their performance” below.

Mgz RNArIARZEERTHERAMAESRBB(HRTHAER
BF (@)2455 B8 TAE  BBZERER
IS E ()P Bt 48 I B B A IR 75 1T E ()R BHERIT %
(ii)Emm B2 (iv)BE : (VIRE  (vi)R 8 : (vii)iR
TREMEL - A RViiEERTTE + R(O)X5.588
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$8,105,000 as compared to
approximately HK$8,988,000 in prior year, representing a
decrease of approximately 9.82%. The decrement in revenue was
due to decrease of interest income from unlisted investments
during the year.

With the impact of favourable performance of certain
publicly traded securities held by the Group, the Group recorded
a realised gain of approximately HK$728,000 (2019: realised
loss of HK$9,903,000) and an unrealised gain of approximately
HK$12,105,000 (2019: unrealised loss of HK$9,025,000) on listed
securities during the year. The Group recorded a net realised
loss of approximately HK$1,746,000 (2019: HK$1,845,000) on
unlisted convertible bonds, which included disposed an unlisted
convertible bond as part of consideration to acquire a loan note,
which caused the Group recorded a realised gain on disposal of
approximately HK$329,000 during the year. During the year, the
loss on disposal of loan notes was approximately HK$3,615,000
(2019: HK$2,064,000) and the gain on disposal of deposits was
HK$1,378,000 (2019: Nil). Meanwhile, impairment losses of
various loan notes of approximately HK$11,931,000 and deposits
and other receivable of approximately HK$1,592,000 were
recognised during the year.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held trading securities
of approximately HK$46,944,000 (2019: HK$7,286,000). The
increase was mainly due to the purchases of certain trading
securities during the year.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s unlisted investments
(comprised of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
and loans and receivables) were approximately HK$129,051,000
(2019: HK$129,977,000). Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments was HK$633,000 (2019: HK$20,874,000).

Pursuant to the requirements stipulated in Rule 21.12 of
Listing Rules, the Company discloses its ten largest investments
and all individual investments with value exceeding 5% of the
Company’s gross assets as at 31 December 2020 with brief
description of the investee companies as follows and as disclosed
in note 22 to 24 to the consolidated financial statements:

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZRAERAT
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Da Long is a private entity established in the PRC, which
is principally engaged in developing and designing mechanical
equipment. Da Long has been developing and producing
intelligent garbage collection systems and production equipment
for nearly 10 years. The Group held a loan note issued by Da
Long with fixed interest at 10% per annum (“LN1”) and was
measured at amortised cost. The interest income recognised of
the Group from the LN1 for the year ended 31 December 2020
was approximately HK$2.4 million (2019: HK$2.4 million). The
impairment loss recognised for the year was approximately
HK$6,358,000. Based on the latest management account of Da
Long, the unaudited net profit for the year ended 31 December
2020 was approximately RMB2.8 million and its net asset value
as at 31 December 2020 was approximately RMB15.8 million.
The Board considers the industry of intelligent garbage collection
systems and production equipment have great prosperity and the
financial performance of Da Long was satisfactory. The Board
also expected that Da Long will keep the growth trend in future.
Therefore, holding the fixed interest income from LN1 was interest
of the Group to obtain stable interest income.

EEA—MRIPBERINALEER TENEH
WERENRBEERT - A +FR ER—ERNRA
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E—HERBITNERZE @ E10%M EE F F L5t
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The Group had subscribed a loan note issued by SQEL which
was private entity established in the PRC, which was principally
engaged in private flight service and management platform in
China. SQEL was issued a loan note (“LN2”) in November 2019
to the Company and would mature after two years from date of
issue. LN2 bears fixed interest at 5% per annum and is measured
at amortised cost. The interest income recognised of the Group
for the year from LN2 was approximately HK$1,655,000. The
impairment loss recognised for the year was approximately
HK$2,733,000. Based on the management account of SQEL as
at 31 December 2020, the unaudited net profit was approximately
RMB15.3 million. As at 31 December 2020, the net asset value
of SQEL was RMB53.3 million. The Board considers the industry
of private flight service in China has bright future and the Board
expects that SQEL will keep the growth trend in the coming future.
Therefore, holding the LN2 was in the interest of the Group to
obtain stable interest income.

Yun Kang Data is a private entity established in the PRC,
which is principally engaged in applying deep learning and
artificial intelligence to analyse the big data for application and
provide clinical diagnosis. Yun Kang Data issued a loan note
(“LN3”) in November 2020 with fixed interest at 6% per annum
to the Company and would mature after three years from the
date of issue. The interest income recognised of the Group from
LN3 for the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately
HK$118,000. The impairment loss of LN3 recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately HK$369,000.
According to the unaudited financial statements as at 31
December 2020 of Yu Kang Data, the unaudited net profit
for the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately
RMB257,000 and its net asset value as at 31 December 2020 was
approximately RMB5.9 million. The Board considered that the life
science and big data industry is a future trend of the globe and it
might a gateway to get involved in this industry by holding the LN3
and to enjoy the fixed interest income as well.
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Huaqin Agriculture is a private entity established in the PRC,
which is principally engaged in technological development of
agricultural and biological product, retail and wholesale of food.
Huagqin Agriculture issued a loan note (“LN4”) in December 2020
with fixed interest at 8.5% per annum to the Group and would
mature after three years from the date of issue. The interest
income recognised of the Group from LN4 for the year ended 31
December 2020 was approximately HK$13,000. The impairment
loss of LN4 recognised for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$220,000. According to the unaudited financial
statements as at 31 December 2020 of Huagin Agriculture, the
unaudited net profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately RMB2.0 million and its net asset value as at 31
December 2020 was approximately RMB2.1 million. The Board
considered that 8.5% of fixed interest income by holding LN4 is in
the interest of the Group to obtain stable interest income.

Perfect Path is a private entity incorporated in Anguilla, which
principally engaged in gold mining business. The Group held 20%
of equity interest of Perfect Path, despite the Group held 20%
of the voting power in Perfect Path, however, under contractual
arrangements the Group has no significant influence over Perfect
Path, another single shareholder control the composition of the
board of directors and have control over Perfect Path. Perfect
Path indirectly owns 45% interest in a gold mine in Thailand (the
“Gold Mine”). According to Perfect Path, all relevant application
documents for obtaining the Gold Mine licence and permits were
submitted to the relevant local government authorities in Thailand,
therefore Perfect Path still not deployed their business and no
income generated during the year ended 31 December 2020.
The net asset value of Perfect Path as at 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$160.4 million. The fair value gain on Perfect
Path recognised by the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 was approximately HK$1.2 million. After having taken into
account all relevant factors and vigilantly verified it with Perfect
Path, it is reasonably hoped that the production of the Gold Mine
will be launched in or around 2023 to 2024. The Board considered
that the gold price will be in the same trend with the past decade
or keep in the high level, therefore, the Group expected to enjoy
the appreciation of gold price or the return from the production of
the Gold Mine by indirectly holding interest in the Gold Mine.
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Tencent is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
(stock code: 700). Tencent is principally engaged in the
provision of value-added services, financial technology and
business services and online advertising services. Based on
the latest published quarterly report for the nine months ended
30 September 2020 of Tencent, the net profit for the period was
approximately RMB100,756 million comparing with the net profit
for the same period last year was approximately RMB73,516
million. The increase of net profit of Tencent was mainly due to
the increase in revenue. The net asset value of Tencent as at
30 September 2020 was approximately RMB646,497 million. Net
dividend (after expenses) approximately HK$1,600 was received
from Tencent during the year ended 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: nil). According to the quarterly report for the
nine months ended 30 September 2020 of Tencent, in the face of
public health, macroeconomic, and geopolitical challenges, they
will seek to sharpen their focus, innovate, and collaborate with
their partners in order to better serve their users, customers and
the society at large. The Board believed the leading position of
Tencent in the market can make them to enjoy the prosperity of
internet industry, the Group would hold the investment in Tencent
and closely monitor its performance and may adjust the portfolio
of Tencent from time to time.

Winchester is a company incorporated in the US (stock code:
WCHS) which is listing on OTC market in the US. Winchester is
an exclusive seller in Hong Kong and Macau for Fiat Professional
vehicle. Based on the latest unaudited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020, the net loss was approximately
US$8.7 million. The net asset value of Winchester as at 31
December 2020 was approximately US$2.7 million. No dividend
was received from Winchester during the year ended 31
December 2020 (31 December 2019: nil). Fiat Professional is an
international famous car brand and it has been awarded numerous
international prizes by panels of trade journalists. The Board
believed Winchester obtaining the exclusive seller right of Fiat
Professional is a catalyst of Winchester. The Group would hold
the investment in Winchester and closely monitor its performance
and may adjust the portfolio of Winchester from time to time.
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Baba is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands (stock
code: 9988). Baba is principally engaged in online retail platform,
cloud computing, digital media and entertainment. Based on
the latest published quarterly report for the three months ended
31 December 2020 of Baba, the net income for the period was
approximately RMB77,977 million comparing with the net income
for the same period last year was approximately RMB50,132
million, the adjusted EBITDA was RMB68,380 million comparing
with the adjusted EBITDA for the same period last year was
approximately RMB55,880 million. No dividend was received from
Baba during the year ended 31 December 2020 (31 December
2019: nil). According to the quarterly report for the three months
ended 31 December 2020 of Baba, demand for digitalization in the
restaurant and service industry remains strong after the impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic in the PRC. They continued to increase
penetration in less developed areas, reflecting their success in
broadening product for the PRC Retail Marketplaces. The Board
believed the leading position of Baba in the market can make
them to enjoy the prosperity of internet industry, the Group would
hold the investment in Baba and closely monitor its performance
and may adjust the portfolio of Baba from time to time.

Classified is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
(stock code: 8232). Classified is principally engaged in restaurant
operations in Hong Kong. Based on the latest published annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2020, the net loss for
the year was approximately HK$16.4 million comparing with the
net loss for the last year was approximately HK$17.2 million, the
decrease of net loss of Classified was mainly due to the decrease
in staff costs, property rentals and the increment of other income.
The net asset value of Classified as at 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$57.3 million. No dividend was received by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
Classified restaurants are a collection of casual European cafés
specializing in artisan breads, cheeses and boutique wines, and
are renowned for their breakfast and all-day dining menu. Offering
casual seating areas in most locations, Classified encourages
neighbourhood street-level interaction. Classified has over eight
restaurants in Hong Kong and three franchised restaurants in
Indonesia. According to the annual report of Classified, Classified
currently plans to expand the take-away product line and open
more new restaurants at lower costs. The Board believes the
operating environment of Classified will become better, the Group
would hold the investment in Classified and will closely monitor
the performance of Classified.
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On Real is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
(stock code: 8245). On Real is a two-way radio product designer
and manufacturer established in 2001. On Real derived
revenue principally from designing, manufacturing and selling
two-way radios and baby monitor products on original design
manufacturing basis. Based on the latest published quarterly
report for the nine months ended 31 December 2020 of On
Real, the net loss for the nine months ended 31 December 2020
was approximately HK$19.4 million comparing with the net loss
of approximately HK$6.4 million for the nine months ended
31 December 2019, the net loss increase primarily due to the
gross profit decreased. The net asset value of On Real as at 31
December 2020 was approximately HK$47.8 million. No dividend
was received by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil). According to the quarterly report of On Real for
the nine months ended 31 December 2020, approximately 32.6%
of the total revenue were derived from the US market. The US
market of two-way radio and baby monitor were the largest market
in the world and it was appropriate marketing strategy of On Real
to focus on the US market. The Board appreciated the effective
marketing strategy of On Real and would hold the investment in
On Real to earn the capital appreciation and the Group will closely
monitor the performance of On Real in the future.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of 3 full-
time employees, including the executive Directors. Employees’
remuneration are fixed and determined with reference to the
market remuneration.

The remuneration policy of the Company for non-executive
Directors is to ensure that they are sufficiently compensated
for their efforts and time dedicated to the Company and that
for the employees, including the executive Directors and senior
management, is to ensure that the remuneration offered is
appropriate for the duties and in line with market practice.
The remuneration policy is to ensure that the pay levels are
competitive and effective in attracting, retaining and motivating
employees. No Director, or any of his associates, or executive is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The key components of the Company’s remuneration package
include basic salary plus other allowances, discretionary cash
bonus and mandatory provident fund. As a long-term incentive
plan and with the aim at motivating employees in the continued
pursuit of the Company’s goal and objectives.
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The Group has no significant exposures to fluctuations
in foreign exchange rates and, therefore, did not employ any
financial instruments to hedge such exposures.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s trading securities
of carrying amount of approximately HK$2,969,000 (2019:
HK$1,715,000) were pledged to a securities broker to secure
margin loan borrowed by the Group.

The Group did not have any major acquisitions and disposals
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed in in this report, the Group did not have
other plan for material investments or acquisition of material
capital assets as at 31 December 2020.

The Company have no capital commitments as at 31
December 2020 (31 December 2019: nil).
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This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report
(the “ESG Report”) has been prepared under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). It sets
out the Group’s actions and performance on sustainability issues
in a transparent and open manner with the intention of increasing
stakeholders’ confidence in and understanding of the Group.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and continued in Bermuda
with limited liability. Its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

The principal activities of the Group are investments in
securities listed on recognised stock exchanges and unlisted
investments with potential for earning growth and capital
appreciation. The Group mainly invests Hong Kong and the
US listed companies and unlisted companies including but
not limited to internet of things and internet services industry;
high-tech industry; life sciences industry; medical; healthcare;
pharmaceutical; banking and finance sector; and energy industry.
This ESG Report covers the Group’s overall performance in two
subject areas, namely, Environmental and Social of the business
operations in Hong Kong from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020 (the “year” or “2020”), unless otherwise stated.

To identify the most significant aspects for the Group to
report on this ESG report, key stakeholders including investors,
shareholders and employees have been involved in regular
engagement sessions. For instance, investors could voice out
their concern and view on the Group’s policies, annual reports,
financial statements, circulars, announcements and notices via
email address provided on the Company’s website, or through
annual general meeting. In addition, the Company also set up
a whistleblowing hotline to enable the stakeholders to discuss
and review areas of attention which could help the business of
the Group to meet its potential growth and be prepared for future
challenges.
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The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on the
approach and performance of ESG via the email address of
cs@cocoon.holdings.

The Board is responsible for and delegating the Group’s
management to timely discuss environmental, social and
governance issues and review the governance codes to enable
the Group to keep abreast of and comply with the latest regulatory
requirements in prior to the approval of this report. This system
monitors the management to design, implement and continuously
monitor risk management and internal control systems and to
assure the suitability and effectiveness of the relevant systems
and to assure timely implementation of the Group’s sustainable
development measures, the accuracy and reliability of the data
presented.

The Group is focusing to unlock the value of emerging
companies in China, Hong Kong and overseas by directly invest in
emerging private and listed companies in China, Hong Kong and
overseas, with the emphasis on those focusing on high growth
from the domestic market.

Sound corporate governance attracts investment, protects
rights of shareholders and stakeholders and enhances
shareholder’s value. The Group is committed to accounting for
its shareholders with a highly transparent and open attitude. The
Group also holds a high standard in business ethics and invests
in sustainable businesses. The Group is committed to improve
quality of the communities and the environment, whilst providing
long-term returns to its stakeholders.
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The table underneath showed aspects on the ESG Reporting
Guide (“ESG Guide”) of the Stock Exchange to be assessed and
those ESG issues were determined to be material to the Group.

B HEeREREIRA
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ESG Aspects as set forth in R BE - Material ESG issues for the HEAEEMEBREKRN
ESG Guide HERERED Group B #HEREREE
(A) Environmental (A) RHE
A1 Emissions Al BERRY Emission from town gas or BRETERERIEN
Vehicle
A2 Use of Resources A2 BIR{EA Use of energy and paper AR &K R
A3 Environment and Natural A3 IRIENR KA EIR  Air pollution AR5
Resources
(B) Social (B) # &
B1 Employment B1 E(E Labour practices BEEEFTN
B2 Health and Safety B2 @RS Workplace health and safety T e B fE FR B %2
B3 Development and B3 # R ki Employee development and EE %R KEI
Training training
B4 Labour Standards B4 4 T %8| Anti-child and forced labour REIREGST
B5 Supply Chain B5 ffrEdEE IR Supply chain management e 58 B 1
Management
B6 Product Responsibility B6 EmE{E Product responsibility EmAaf
B7 Anti-corruption B7 R&ES Anti-corruption, fraud prevention &5 [ I B 5E & &%
and anti-money laundering L2§ 2
B8 Community Investment B8 fL[Ei&&E Community programs, employee +t[&/E% B & & LTIR%E

volunteering and donation PEEA

The Group considers environmental protection an essential
component of sustainable and responsible business. The Group
strives to reduce negative impacts on the environment and to seek
environmental-friendly methods of operation in daily activities
and by holistic management approaches, substantial resources
invested in emissions control, responsible use of energy and
waste management, and supporting consumers’ efforts to mitigate
the environmental burden. Type of emission sources that the
Group involved during the year was mainly electricity and paper.
The Group’s business did not involve in production-related air,
water, and land pollutions which are regulated under national laws
and regulations. There were no water consumption and packaging
materials involved in the Group’s business operation. During the
year, the total floor area coverage of the Group was around 50 m?2
(2019: 50 m2).
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Since the Company did not have neither town fuel and town HRARAGERAFEEANTERABME HERE
gas consumption nor motor vehicle during the year, therefore no FEoooNEEREE - NI EERMBERERE -
emissions data applied.

KPI
HARENER
% increase/
2020 2019 Unit (decrease)
—E-ZF —E-hF B #m 0B %
Scope 1 & E1
Direct Emission & # #F ik N/A 1~ i@ A N/A T~ iE A Tonnes W& —
Scope 2 &1 E 2
Indirect
Emission il %2 HF AR 3.44 3.53 Tonnes M (2.5%)
Scope 3 EE3
Other indirect
Emission At B HE AR 8.62 5.16 Tonnes W& 67%
Total A&t 12.06 8.69 Tonnes Mg 39%
During the year, there was 12.06 tonnes (2019: 8.69 tonnes) RAFEEAN  RNEBZEEEEPEN T 12.060F
of carbon dioxide equivalent greenhouse gases (mainly carbon (ZE—NF : 869 M —_ELIREERERE (£
dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide) emitted from the Group’s TAE—Sthix - FRAMEEER) - AEBRAFE
operation. The annual emission intensity of the Group during the N FEHEREERE LA R0O4BE _SLikE =
year was 0.24 tCO_e/m? (2019: 0.17 tCO,e/m2). (ZZE—NF : FFHKOATHE_ELEE) °
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The Group generated no hazardous waste in its operation.
Non-hazardous waste from the Group’s operation was mainly
office paper but the management of the Group believed that the
impact of non-hazardous waste arose from the waste paper is
insignificant.

The Group practices paper saving initiatives, such as
encouraging employees to use duplex printing for internal
documents and adopt environmental-friendly photocopier. The
Group strives to tackle the paper wastage problems in offices
by establishing a paperless office. Hence, the Group advocates
electronic storage and communication, such as receiving fax by
email instead of printing, and delivering reports to shareholders in
electronic copies.

Apart from reducing paper waste at source, paper recycling
also contributes to conserving resources such as forests, energy
and water. To efficiently recycle used paper, waste segregation
and collection are particularly important. The Group provides
ample facilities and procedures for paper waste collection so as to
enhance recycling efficiency.

The Group is committed to pursuing green office practices
through energy saving measures and manages the use of
resources to ensure they are resource-efficient in a sustainable
manner.

Due to the nature of office’s operations and business, the
major resource consumed by the Group is electricity and there
is no packaging materials used. During the year, the electricity
consumption of the Group was 4,300 kWh (2019: 6,083 kWh). To
prevent the excessive consumption of electricity, the companies
regulate air conditioners to maintain optimal temperature and
conduct regular inspection to turn off unused electrical appliances
to lower energy consumption. The decrease of electricity
consumption was mainly the result of the Group encouraged its
staff to adopt energy saving measures through reminders and
emails.
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The air pollution is mainly produced by photocopiers, stale
air drawn in from outside through poorly located fresh air inlets
and bacteria that enter the office. In order to improve the indoor
air quality, a range of air pollution emission measures have been
implemented by the Group and they were:

*  Ensure air inlets are away from any source of pollutants
and sufficient ventilation systems;

* Clean all air units regularly (e.g. air inlets, air outlets and
filters); and

* Perform regular maintenance on carpet and furniture
upholstery.

There was no non-compliance case noted in relation to
environmental laws and regulations for the year.

The Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional
opportunity, compensation and benefit packages to attract
and retain talents. The Group possesses a Remuneration
Committee, which regularly reviews its remuneration policy. The
Remuneration Committee ensures packages offered by the Group
are appealing to employees and in line with the market trend.
The Group had a total number of 3 (2019: 3) employees as of 31
December 2020, in which 100% was full time staff in Hong Kong.
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Age Group F ¥4 Bl
0-15 0Z=155%

16 - 18 16 = 185%
19 - 30 19Z3075%
31-45 31%2455%
46 - 60 46 26055
=61/ > 61 6175% 3k LA
By Gender 7 % 3l
Under employment 2B

Employees are entitled to discretionary cash bonus
and mandatory provident fund. Additional fringe benefits
include office insurance, employee compensation
insurance, directors’ and officers’ liability insurance.
Various types of paid leave are also offered on top of
statutory requirement including annual leave, sick leave,
maternity leave, paternity leave, compensation leave,
compassionate leave and wedding leave. Employees
working overtime are entitled to overtime allowance and
compensation by time off. The Group may also at its sole
discretion, to grant share options to employees as a long-
term incentive aiming to motivate employees pursuing
Group’s goal and objectives. Employees including
Directors can subscribe shares of the Company based on
their performance and contribution to the Group.

The Group committed to ensure safe and healthy
working environment for its employees and to inspire and
strengthens workforce regardless of their age, gender and
ethnical backgrounds.
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2020 2019
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Male Female Male Female
5 z 5 z
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0% 0% 0% 0%
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33% 67% 33% 67%
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0% 0% 0% 0%
2020 2019
= 1 —E-NEF
Male Female Male Female
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33% 67% 33% 67%
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Age Group Fidn
0-15 0Z£155%

16 - 18 16 E181%
19 - 30 19%2305%
31-45 31E 4553
46 - 60 46 £607%
=61/ > 61 6158 3 A £
By Gender & % 3l
Resigned staff BEET

The Group will continue to provide a well-structured
and caring environment to its employees to raise their
sense of belonging and work efficiency at the Group.

Employee safety and health is always the Group’s highest
priority. With this in mind, the Group strives to ensure a safe
working environment to minimise workplace accidents. Even
though the Group, as an investment holding company, is tied with
lower safety risk in daily operations, the Group regularly provides
notices to remind employees on health and safety measures at
work, such be guidelines on using electronic appliances. The
Group is committed to providing a safe working environment by
implementing the following key measures:

* Providing and maintaining in all workplaces under the
Group’s control a working environment which is safe and
poses no threat to health

» Carrying out inspection for any unsafe condition and fix it
immediately

 Smoking is prohibited in all enclosed areas within the
offices, without exception
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0%
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0%
0%
0%
0%
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Female Male Female
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The COVID-19 pandemic crisis has been putting pressure
on the Group and its employees during the year. As part of the
COVID-19 countermeasures and to prevent the spread of the
virus, the Group has implemented stringent infection preventive
measures to protect its employees. The Group’s closely
monitored the health of its employees every day by checking
their body temperature, providing sufficient surgical masks and
alcohol-based hand rub in the office. The Group also required
its employees to consider using other methods such as online
video meeting software for interviews or meetings. Employees
are advised to wear masks and avoid physical contact (such
as shaking hands, hugging) and crowded places when they are
required to meet people or work outside in their local community.

During the year, the Group had no non-compliance
case regarding violation of relevant laws and regulations on
occupational health and safety.

Health and Safety REHEZZ

Number of work- ETEBERETHT
related fatalities
Lost days due to work

injury

ETEmBELRNTIE
H#

The package offered by the Group in relation to development
and training includes training covering topics of business
operations, policy and procedures of the Group, statutory and
regulatory obligations of being a director. Ongoing trainings,
briefings and seminars would also be provided to staff after the
induction to refresh their professional knowledge and skills.

In addition to above, the Group also encourages and supports
employees’ personal development through attending external
trainings and special early leave would be granted for training
purpose. Thus, various types of suitable seminars or training
courses will be recommended to employees via email and they
can choose either registered personally or through the Company.
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The Group also provides communication channel to its
employees. Notices, emails, team briefings serve as the major
channels of communication among the management and frontline
staff. Performance appraisals and annual surveys also provided

AEBNTAHEERHNBERRE - B EBR
NEBRRERERFRKEI CHAMNIREERE -
RETFERFEONBETREEBENIAIGE TRMHF
B UFEERR  UREEUAKERKERNHH

platforms for the management and frontline staff to evaluate their £ o
performances and voice out their expectations to the Group’s
future development.
Total no. of training hours
No. of staff received
BETA¥ b RN SE G
2020 2019 2020 2019
—EBZEF —EB-NF —E_ETF —ENEF
Senior = & 2 4 4
Middle level AR 0 0 0 0
Others HAh 0 0 0 0
Total no. of training hours
received
BRI EY /N A B
2020 2019 2020 2019
—B-FF —EB-NEF —T-FHF —ZE-hF
Male Es 1 1 2 2
Female z 1 1 2 2

No child or forced labour were employed in the Group’s
operations during the year which was in compliance with the
Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong in
terms of employment management.

The Group lists specific requirements on advertisement to
hire the most suitable candidate. All resume, original identification
card, original certificate should be first checked by the interviewer
during interview. The Group may contact candidate’s preceded
employer for reference.
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Equal opportunities are given to employees in respect of
recruitment, training and development, job advancement, and
compensation and benefits. The employees are not discriminated
against or deprived of such opportunities on the basis of gender,
ethnic background, religion, race, sexual orientation, age, marital
status, family status, retirement, disability, pregnancy or any
other discrimination prohibited by applicable law. The Group also
appreciates the importance of cultural diversity in the development
of the Group, and employs employees in a wide range of ages,
genders, and ethnicities.

In particular, the Group adopted a Board Diversity function
under which the Board composition includes members from with
different skills, industry knowledge and experience, education,
background and other qualities without discrimination.

The Group has no tolerance for the use of forced labour or
child labour in its business operations. The Group enters into
employment contract with each of its employees in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations. If the use of forced
labour or child labour is discovered, the Group will terminate the
employment contract and investigate if further action is needed.

During the year, the Group had no non-compliance case
regarding violation of relevant child labour and forced labour laws.

The Group has been closely working with our suppliers
to strengthen our sustainability portfolio and minimise risks
throughout the supply chain and is committed to promoting
sustainable and responsible operational standards. In this regard,
the Group formulated a series of sustainable procurement policies
and polices on obtaining quotations from more than one supplier
for procurement of all equipment and products.
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The Group’s suppliers mainly comprise of those providing
general office supplies, such as water, paper and stationery
and are all located in Hong Kong. The Group has set out a
standardised supplier selection approach that generally selects
suppliers based on their scale of business and reputation. Its
suppliers should comply with all relevant local and national
laws and regulations in relation to unethical behaviour, bribery,
corruption and other prohibited business practices. The Group
expects the suppliers to implement good employment measures
by dealing with their employees fairly and reasonably, respecting
employees’ rights and providing employees with an environment
free of discrimination, child labour and forced labour. The
suppliers also need to adhere to transparent business processes
and high standards of conduct which they have to avoid conflicts
of interest and prohibit corruption and bribery. Prior to making any
procurement decisions, the Group will conduct due diligence and
assessments on suppliers to avoid environmental and social risks.

During the year, the Group did not aware that any key
suppliers had any significant actual and potential negative impact
on business ethics, environmental protection, human rights and
labour practices, nor any of them had any non-compliance incident
in respect of human rights issues.

As stated in the Group’s Employee Manual, insider
information is prohibited to disclose to third party, and so
consumer data and privacy matters relating to services are
protected. Employees are required to read the Employee Manual
and follow strictly. The Group’s operation did not involve in any
product or service-related complaints.

The Group protects its intellectual property rights by
registration of domain names in Hong Kong. Such domain name is
renewed upon its expiration. The Group understands and complies
with the intellectual property (“IP”) rights regulations. During the
year, there was no material infringement of the IP rights and the
Group is confident that all reasonable measures have been taken
to prevent any infringement of its own IP rights and the IP rights of
third parties.

During the year, the Group had no non-compliance case
regarding violations of relevant laws and regulations on product
responsibility and data privacy.
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The Group commits to managing all business without undue
influence and has regarded honesty, integrity, and fairness as its
core values. All Directors and employees are required to strictly
follow the Group’s policy to prevent potential bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering. Employees are regularly reminded
about anti-corruption policies through memos. Whistle-blowing
procedures on misconduct and malpractice (including corruption)
are also established in the Group’s policy. When suspicious case
is received, the Group would undergo investigation procedures
with secured protection on complainant’s confidentially.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with the laws and regulations related to anti-
corruption.

To maintain a high standard of corporate governance,
the Group acknowledged the importance of enhancing its
transparency to the community. The community is regularly
informed of updated news and directions of the Group through
circulars, announcements and annual reports posted on the
Company’s website. The Group will consider its direction on focus
area of community engagement and types of resources to be
contributed.

The Group has conducted the ESG Report in accordance
with the Environmental, Social, Governmental Reporting Guide
(Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules), all the information available
for the reporting period are included in this report. The Group
is committed to continue the ESG reporting on a regular basis
and to improve on policies and procedures to the management,
measurement and monitoring system of the ESG related
strategies that will facilitate a more sustainable business growth.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
during the year are investments in securities listed on recognised
stock exchanges and unlisted investments with a potential for
earnings growth and capital appreciation. The activities of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group’s revenue for the year comprised interest earned
from bank deposits, loans and receivables and convertible bonds.

A fair review of the business of the Company and a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and
the material factors underlying its results and financial position
are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion & Analysis” from pages 4 to 5 and pages 6 to 17 of
this annual report respectively. The outlook of the Company’s
business is discussed in the “Chairman Statement” from pages
4 to 5 of this annual report. Description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Company can be found throughout this
annual report particularly in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements. Particulars of important events affecting the Company
that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2020, can
be found in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
Environmental policies and performance are discussed in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” from pages 18 to
30 of this annual report.
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The Group’s investments are partially carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the British Virgin Islands
while the Company itself was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability and continued in Bermuda with limited liability
with its shares listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
Our establishment and operations accordingly shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations in the Bermuda, the British Virgin
Islands and Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date
of this annual report, we have complied in material respects with
the relevant rules, laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands,
where applicable, and Bermuda, the British Virgin Islands and
Hong Kong that have a significant impact on the Group.

As the Group principally engages in investments in listed
and unlisted securities, no specific customers or suppliers will be
involved in the operation of business. The investee companies
and the investment manager are good working partners creating
value for the Group. The Group also values the knowledge and
skills of its employees, and continues to provide favourable career
development opportunities for its employees.

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 74.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 76 and note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group and the Company are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

No distributable reserve of the Company at 31 December
2020, according to the Companies Act of Bermuda.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or applicable laws of Bermuda.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 156.

The Company did not redeem any of its listed shares during
the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed shares during the
year.

The Company does not have share option scheme.

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter
into any agreements that will or may result in the Company issues
shares were entered into during the year or subsisted at the end
of the year.
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The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Wu Ming Gai

Chan Carman Wing Yan
Wong Chung Yan Sammy
William Keith Jacobsen
Chen Albert

Chan Man Yi

Leung Yin Ting

Jiang Qian

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”)
and with the recommendation of the nomination committee of the
Company, Mr. Wu Ming Gai, Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy, Ms.
Chan Man Yi and Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan, being the longest
in office and determined by lot, shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen, Mr. Chen Albert and Mr. Wong
Chung Yan Sammy are non-executive Directors.

Ms. Chan Man Yi, Ms. Leung Yin Ting and Mr. Jiang Qian are
independent non-executive Directors.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors as regards their
independence of the Company and considers that each of the
independent non-executive Directors is independent of the
Company.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
any member of the Company which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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Mr. Wu Ming Gai’s interest in contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no transactions, arrangements or
other contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, or its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

The Bye-Laws provides that every Director shall be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all liability
incurred by him as such director in defending any proceedings,
whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his favour,
or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities
and costs associated with defending any proceedings which may
be brought against the Directors and officers of the Company
and its subsidiaries. Such insurance was in force during the year
ended 31 December 2020 and remained in force as of the date of
this annual report.
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Brief biographical details of Directors are set out below:

Mr. Wu Ming Gai, aged 45, joined the Company in July
2015. He was re-designated from a non-executive director to
an executive director of the Company effective from 1 March
2016 and appointed as the chairman of the board of directors
of the Company in February 2019. He is also a director of each
subsidiary of our Company. Mr. Wu is one of the directors and
responsible officers of Tiger Securities Asset Management
Company Limited (“Tiger Securities”) (as the investment manager
of the Company since 1 March 2016). Mr. Wu is currently licensed
under the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”) to carry
out Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities)
and Type 9 (assets management) regulated activities accredited
to Tiger Securities. He has obtained the Honor Diploma of
Accounting from the Hong Kong Shue Yan University in July
1999. He has over 12 years of management experience in fund
accounting and asset management. He was the chief operating
officer of Tiger Securities from 2007 to 2012 responsible for the
overall operation of fund management. Since 2013, he has been
the director of the same company responsible for the general
management of regulated activities.

Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan, aged 41, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company, and the chairman
and a member of investment committee of the Company on 25
February 2019. She was appointed as chief executive officer
of the Company on 3 June 2019. She is one of the responsible
officers of Bradbury Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited
(“BAM”). Ms. Chan is currently a licensed person to carry out type
9 (asset management) regulated activities under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “SFO”). Ms. Chan holds a Master of Business Administration
Degree from the University of Wales, Newport, United Kingdom.
She has previous work experiences in Hong Kong, Canada
and Europe. She is experienced in dealing in securities, fund
management, corporate management, corporate finance and
managing investment companies listed under Chapter 21 of the
Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange. Before joining BAM as a
responsible officer in 2016, Ms. Chan acted as a type 4 (Advising
on Securities) and type 9 (asset Management) responsible officer,
executive director and chief operating officer of Iridium Capital
Limited, a SFC licensed corporation since 2015. From 2011 to
2015, Ms. Chan worked for CU Investment Management Limited,
which was the investment manager of National Investments
Fund Limited (stock code: 1227), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. Ms. Chan was an independent non-executive director
of Dadi International Group Limited (formerly known as Zhi Cheng
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8130), a company listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange, during the period from July 2015 to
November 2017.
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Mr. William Keith Jacobsen, aged 54, is a non-executive
Director and member of investment committee of the Company
since 17 November 2014. Mr. Jacobsen is the chief executive
officer of a licensed corporation to advise on corporate finance
matters. He obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business Administration
from the University of British Columbia. Mr. Jacobsen has more
than 25 years of experience in corporate finance and business
development. He was an executive director of Auto Italia Holdings
Limited (stock code: 720) for the period from 1 January 2012 to
17 October 2015. He was a non-executive director of Ping An
Securities Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 231) for the
period from 12 August 2015 to 30 September 2016. He was also
an independent non-executive director of King Stone Energy
Group Limited (stock code: 663), Qingdao Holdings International
Limited (stock code: 499), Hongda Financial Holding Limited
(stock code: 1822), China Financial Leasing Group Limited (stock
code: 2312), Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited (stock code:
723) and Solis Holdings Limited (stock code: 2227) for the period
from 26 September 2008 to 30th September 2011, from 20 June
2008 to 27 September 2014, from 7 January 2013 to 29 August
2014, from 1 February 2013 to 30 April 2015, from 4 January 2013
to 29 December 2017 and 25 September 2019 to 30 September
2020 respectively. Mr. Jacobsen is currently an independent non-
executive director of abc Multiactive Limited (stock code: 8131)
and an independent non-executive director of KK Culture Holdings
Limited (stock code: 550).

Mr. Chen Albert, aged 33, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 1 August 2018. He is currently a
member of remuneration committee of the Company. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and Computer Science of
University of Michigan in the United States of America. Mr. Chen
is currently the head of blockchain department of a technology
company in crypto-currency industry. He is also founder and chief
consultant of a consultancy company, which provides advisory
services on start-ups on physical product design, engineering
and production. Mr. Chen has over 7 years’ experience in his
entrepreneurship. Mr. Chen is a son of Mr. Chen Chien Yeh, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.
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Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy, aged 56, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on 23
March 2018, and re-designated as a non-executive director on 14
December 2018. He is currently a member of each of the audit
committee and nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Wong
holds a Bachelor's degree in Social Science from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He has over 28 years of financial
planning & modeling, investment analysis & execution and project
& liquidity management experience in banking and commercial
industry. Mr. Wong had held senior management positions in
various subsidiaries of certain companies listed in Hong Kong.
He is now also a director of a private securities company in Hong
Kong. Mr. Wong is currently a director of a subsidiary of the
Company namely Studio V Limited.

Ms. Chan Man Yi, aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 21 August 2018. She
is currently the chairman and a member of each of the audit
committee and the nomination committee of the Company and
a member of the remuneration committee of the Company. Ms.
Chan was graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Master’s degree in professional accounting and has over
25 years of experience in pension and provident fund industry.
Ms. Chan is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ms. Chan was the company secretary of Glory Mark
Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8159) from 4 December
2012 to 10 January 2019 and she is currently an independent
non-executive director of Orient Securities International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8001), both companies are listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Leung Yin Ting, aged 39, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 14
December 2018. She is currently a member of each of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Ms.
Leung is a barrister in Hong Kong and was called to the Bar of
Hong Kong in 2013. She is currently a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and has
achieved the specialist qualification in insolvency of HKICPA
in 2016. Ms. Leung obtained a Bachelor degree of Laws
from University of Warwick, the United Kingdom in 2004, and
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong
in 2006. Before pursuing her career in Law, she has more than
four years’ audit experience in the Big Four accounting firms in
Hong Kong.
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Mr. Jiang Qian, aged 42, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 14 December 2018.
He is currently the chairman and a member of remuneration
committee of the Company and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company. From September 2007 to November
2009, Mr. Jiang worked at an attorney at Davis Polk & Wardwell
LLP, where he was involved in the public offering and bond
issuance. From January 2010 to November 2011, he worked as
a counsel at King & Wood Law Firm (&t 7B % 75 ), where
his practice focuses on capital market and public offerings.
From January 2012 to January 2015, he served as a managing
director at Bank of New York Mellon, where he was responsible
for the management of its legal affairs. From February 2015 to
December 2015, Mr. Jiang served as a managing director at
China Commodity Merchant Trading Group Limited, a subsidiary
of Elion Resources Group ({E7%|& R % E), a company mainly
engaged in ecological restoration and clean energy, where he
was responsible for its investment and financing in Hong Kong.
From December 2015 to June 2018, he served as co-head of
the legal department at China Great Wall AMC (International)
Holdings Company Limited (F B &R EE (BR) ERER A7)
(formerly known as Great Wall Pan Asia International Investment
Company Limited (KR I B[R 2 & B[R 2 7)), a company mainly
engaged in property investment and financial business, where he
was responsible for the management of its legal affairs in Hong
Kong. Since November 2018, he has been serving as a partner
at Addleshaw Goddard (Hong Kong) LLP, where his practice
focuses on debt capital markets and special situation transactions
such as restructuring. Mr. Jiang obtained his bachelor’'s degree in
economic law from East China University of Political Science and
Law (ZER KA AE) in the PRC in July 1999, and his master of
laws degree from Northwestern University in the United States in
June 2007. Mr. Jiang obtained the legal professional qualification
certificate in the PRC in February 2000 and was admitted and
licensed to practise as an attorney and counselor in the state of
New York of the United States in July 2008. Mr. Jiang is currently
an independent non-executive director of China Gingko Education
Group Company Limited (stock code: 1851).
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As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors or the chief
executive (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company had,
nor were they taken to or deemed to have under Part XV of the
SFO, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or any
interests which are required to be entered into the register kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) to the Listing Rules.

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2020 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors or chief executives (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company (including their spouse and children under
18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporates.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Company had been notified

of the following substantial shareholders’ interests and short
position, being 5% or more of the Company’s shares and
underlying shares which are required to be recorded in the
register of interests in shares and short positions maintained
under Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of shareholders

BRREEEHE

Chen Chien Yeh

Rz

Solution Smart Holdings Limited

SW Venture Asia Limited

Yeung Shing Wai

Bk (&

Capacity/Nature of Interests

56 HEEtE

Beneficial owner/
Beneficial interest
EnEBEAN EnEn

Beneficial owner/
Beneficial interest
EnBA EnEn

Corporate interest
ZEGEEREREEER

Corporate interest

REtEEES OREER

(L) — Long Position
(S) — Short Position

Notes:

1.

Solution Smart Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by
SW Venture Asia Limited. SW Venture Asia Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung Shing Wai. Accordingly, Mr.
Yeung Shing Wai and SW Venture Asia Limited are deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Solution Smart Holdings Limited
under the SFO.

Following the completion of the Rights Issue in October 2019, the
Company had not received any notifications of disclosure of interests
from those shareholders reporting the change in percentage of shares.
Based on the issued shares as at 31 December 2020, the percentage
level of those shareholders had been reduced to below 5%.

Interest in a controlled corporation/

Interest in a controlled corporation/

RZBE_ZF+_A=+—HB KEHFLH

BEOIDFEIBBHRAEEF2ROEERARELMEA

N

CARBEAEUNTEIERREEARARMN K

R 155%3 A E 2 #m RoAkR

Number of ordinary

Percentage of

total issued shares

of the Company

as at 31 December 2020
HARRRAR=Z=BF

shares held +=ZA=+—-HB%2
FisEEBEREAE ERTROABES L
97,830,790 (L) 27.20%
5,174,000 (L) 1.44%
(Notes 1 & 2)
(K1aE17/12)
5,174,000 (L) 1.44%
(Notes 1 & 2)
(KfaE17/12)
5,174,000 (L) 1.44%

(Notes 1 & 2)
(Hfat1702)

Hrat
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Venture Asia Limited# 1% & 7 Solution Smart Holdings
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the
Company has not been notified of any other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which had been recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

Details of significant management contracts in relation to the
Company’s business are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

The Group is an investment holding company. In the opinion
of the Directors, it is therefore of no value to disclose details of the
Group’s customers and suppliers.

Significant related party transactions entered by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 which also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, are disclosed in note 36(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year, the above-mentioned connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions are constituted exempted
transactions under chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which
were carried out and disclosed in compliance with the relevant
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Changes in directors’ information in respect of the period
between the publication date of the 2020 interim report of the
Company and this report, which are required to be disclosed
pursuant to the requirement of Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules
are set out in the section of “Biographical Details Of Directors” of
this annual report.
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As at the date of this report, the Company’s Audit Committee
is composed of one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Wong
Chung Yan Sammy, two independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman) and Ms. Leung Yin Ting. It
reports directly to the Board and reviews matters within the scope
of audit, such as financial statements and internal controls, to
protect the interests of the Company’s shareholders.

The Audit Committee meets regularly with the Company’s
external auditor, to discuss audit process and accounting issues,
and reviews effectiveness of internal controls and risk evaluation.
Written terms of reference, which describes the authority and
duties of the Audit Committee are regularly reviewed and
updated by the Board. The terms of reference is available on the
Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters
including review and approval of the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date
of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of
the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.
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World Link CPA Limited, who acted as auditor of the Company
for the financial years of 2016, 2017 and 2018, resigned on 23
December 2019 and McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
(“McMillan Woods”) was appointed as auditor of the Company on
23 December 2019.

The financial statements of the Group for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2020 have been audited by McMillan Woods.
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint McMillan Woods as the
auditor of the Company.

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting date
are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

By order of the Board
Cocoon Holdings Limited
Wu Ming Gai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Maintaining high standards of corporate governance in
everything we do.

Sound corporate governance practices are crucial to the
smooth, effective and transparent operation of a company and
its ability to attract investment, protect rights of shareholders and
stakeholders, and enhance shareholder value. The Company is
committed to high standards of corporate governance with a view
to being transparent, open and accountable to our shareholders.

The Company adopted all the code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as its own code on corporate
governance practices.

The Company had met the relevant code provisions set out in
the Code during the year. The Board will continue to monitor and
review the Company’s corporate governance practices to ensure
compliance with the Code.
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) currently
comprises two executive Directors. Mr. Wu Ming Gai acts as
Chairman of the Board and Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan is the
chief executive officer of the Company (“CEO”). The Company
has three non-executive Directors, Mr. Chen Albert, Mr. William
Keith Jacobsen and Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy. The Company
has three independent non-executive Directors, Ms. Chan Man Yi,
Ms. Leung Yin Ting and Mr. Jiang Qian, representing more than
one-third of the Board. Ms. Chan Man Yi and Ms. Leung Yin Ting
both have appropriate professional accounting experience and
expertise.

All Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of
expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal and
professional ethics and integrity. The biographical details of each
Director are disclosed on pages 36 to 39 of this annual report.

Each independent non-executive Director has pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, confirmed that he/she is
independent of the Company and the Company also considers
that they are independent.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material relationship) between members of the Board.

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, the Directors shall hold office
subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting of
the Company at least once every three years and eligible for re-
election.

The term of office of each of non-executive Directors

(including independent non-executive Directors) is for a period of
three years, subject to retirement by rotation.
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The Board, headed by the Chairman, is responsible for
providing high-level guidance and effective oversight of the
management of the Company, formulation and approval of the
Group’s development and business strategies and policies,
approval of annual budgets, financial results and business plans,
recommendation of dividend, and supervision of management in
accordance with the provisions set out in the Bye-Laws.

The CEO is responsible for day-to-day management of the
Company’s operations. She conducts regular meetings with
the management of the subsidiaries of the Company, at which
operational issues and financial performance are evaluated.

The Company views well-developed and timely reporting
systems and internal controls are essential, and the Board plays a
key role in the implementation and monitoring of internal controls
and risk management.

The Board has established procedure to enable Directors,
upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Matters specifically decided by the Board and those reserved
for the management, such as daily management, administration
and operation of the Company, etc. with respective level of
authorities with regard to key corporate strategy, policy and
contractual commitments, are reviewed by the Board. The
management shall report back to the Board.

The Bye-Laws contain description of responsibilities and
operation procedures of the Board. The Board holds regular
meeting and listens to the operating reports of the Company and
makes policies. Significant operating policies of the Company
have to be discussed and passed by the Board. Board meetings
include regular meetings as defined in the Code and other
meetings when necessary. The Board of Directors meets formally
at least four times a year.

Besides regular and other meetings, the Board obtains
adequate information through working meetings, presided by the
Chairman in a timely manner, to monitor objectives and strategies
of the management, financial conditions and operating results of
the Company and provisions of significant agreements.
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During year 2020, the Board held four regular Board meetings
at approximately quarterly interval and other Board meetings
which were convened when deemed necessary. Due notice
and Board papers of regular Board meetings were given to all
Directors prior to the meeting in accordance with the Bye-Laws
and the Code. Details of individual attendance of Directors at
regular Board meetings in 2020 are set out below:

Executive Directors
HITES

Mr. Wu Ming Gai

HA B4 1 S &

Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan
BR &k iR 2 =

Non-executive Directors
FHTES

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen
HEREHELLE

Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy
=HR{ICELE

Mr. Chen Albert

IR 7 18 5% A4

Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHITES
Ms. Chan Man Yi
PR & L+
Ms. Leung Yin Ting
R Ie L+
Mr. Jiang Qian
B Rk E
There was no change to the composition of the Board and

all Board committees during the year and up to the date of this
report.
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The role of the Chairman (assumed by an executive Director,
Mr. Wu Ming Gai) is separated from that of the CEO (assumed
by an executive director, Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan). Such
division of responsibilities allows a balance of power between
the Board and the management of the Group, and ensures their
independence and accountability.

Since 3 June 2019, the CEO is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the business of the Group, attends to formulation
and successful implementation of policies, and assumes full
accountability to the Board for all operations of the Group. The
CEO keeps working with the management team of subsidiaries of
the Company, she ensures smooth operations and development of
the Group. She maintains continuing dialogue with the Chairman
and all Directors to keep them fully informed of all major business
developments and issues. She is also responsible for building and
maintaining an effective management team to support her. Prior
to 3 June 2019, the role of CEO was performed by the executive
Directors of the Company.

The Chairman is the leader of the Board and he oversees
the Board so that it acts in the best interests of the Group. The
Chairman is responsible for deciding the agenda of each Board
meeting, taking into account, where appropriate, matters proposed
by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has
overall responsibility for providing leadership, vision and direction
in the development of the business of the Company. During the
year, the Chairman had held a meeting with the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company without the presence of
the other executive Directors and non-executive Directors of the
Company.

The Board considers that there are adequate balance of
power and safeguards in place and will review and monitor this
situation periodically and will ensure that present structure would
not impair the balance of power of the Company.
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In the course of discharging their duties, the Directors act in

good faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests

of the Company and its shareholders of the Company. Their
responsibilities include:

an

Attending regular board meetings focusing on business
strategy, operational issues and financial performance.

Active participation on the boards of subsidiaries of the
Company.

Approval of annual budgets for each operating company
covering strategy, financial and business performance,
key risks and opportunities.

Monitoring the quality, timeliness, relevance and reliability
of internal and external reporting.

Monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest
of management, Board members and shareholders,
including misuse of corporate assets and abuse in related
party transaction.

Ensuring processes are in place to maintain the overall
integrity of the Company, including financial statements,
relationships with other stakeholders, and compliance
with all laws and ethics.

To enable the Company’s Directors to meet their obligations,
appropriate organisational structure is in place with clearly

defined responsibilities and limits of authority.

A number of board committees of the Company, including audit

committee of the Board (“Audit Committee”), investment committee
of the Board (“Investment Committee”), nomination committee of
the Board (“Nomination Committee”) and remuneration committee
of the Board (“Remuneration Committee”), have been established
by the Board of Directors to strengthen its functions and to

enhance its expertise. These committees have been formed with

specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with the
committees’ authority and duties.
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The Board has established an Investment Committee, as
at the date of this report, the Investment Committee comprising
one executive Director, namely Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan
(Chairman) and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. William
Keith Jacobsen.

The terms of reference of the Investment Committee have
been approved and adopted by the Board.

The Investment Committee considers, evaluates, reviews
and recommends to the Board the proposed major investments,
acquisitions and disposals, conducts post-investment evaluation
with investment manager of the investment projects, reviews
and considers the overall strategic direction and business
developments of the Company.

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, as at
the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprising,
one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Chen Albert and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Qian
(Chairman), Ms. Chan Man Yi and Ms. Leung Yin Ting.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee have
been reviewed with reference to the Code which is available on
the Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee’s responsibilities are to review
and consider Company’s policy for remuneration of Directors
and senior management, to determine remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management (under
code provision B.1.2(c)(i) was adopted) including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, and to recommend
to the Board of Directors on remuneration of independent non-
executive Directors.

Set out below is the summary of work of the Remuneration
Committee done in 2020:

— reviewed the remuneration policy for 2020/2021;

— determined the remuneration of executive Directors and
senior management; and

— reviewed and made recommendation of the fee of the
non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors).
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The remuneration of the members of the senior management
(including all executive Directors) by band for the year ended 31
December 2020 is set out below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)

FHERCER)

0 to 1,000,000
0%1,000,000

Further particulars regarding all Directors’ remuneration
and the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 15
to the consolidated financial statements on pages 123 to 126.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during 2020.
Details of individual attendance of its members are set out in the
table below:

Names

e

Mr. Jiang Qian (Chairman)
BREE(ERE)

Ms. Chan Man Yi

PR BUE L+

Ms. Leung Yin Ting
RIE L+

Mr. Chen Albert

R M 178 5 A4
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As at the date of this report, the Company’s Audit Committee
is composed of one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Wong
Chung Yan Sammy, two independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman) and Ms. Leung Yin Ting.
It reports directly to the Board of Directors and reviews matters
within the scope of audit, such as financial statements and internal
controls, to protect the interests of the Company’s shareholders.

The Audit Committee meets regularly with the Company’s
external auditor to discuss audit process and accounting issues,
and reviews effectiveness of internal controls and risk evaluation.
Written terms of reference, which describes the authority and
duties of the Audit Committee are regularly reviewed and
updated by the Board. The terms of reference is available on the
Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

Set out below is the summary of work done in 2020:

— review of the consolidated and condensed financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 and for
the six months ended 30 June 2020 respectively;

— review of effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems;

— review of internal audit function;

— review of continuing connected transactions and annual
caps;

— review of implementation of policy for employees of the
Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters;

— review of independent auditor’s report and management
letter; and

— consideration and approval of 2020 audit fees and
audit work, review of engagement letter and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and resignation of auditor.

As at 31 December 2020, the arrangement for employees of
the Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters was in place.
No reporting has been received by Audit Committee during the
year.
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year.
Details of individual attendance of its members are set out in the
table below:

Names

i

Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman)
REEL LT (FE)

Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy
mH{CELE

Ms. Leung Yin Ting
R L

The Board has established a nomination committee on 1
April 2012 which currently comprises one non-executive Director,
Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy, two independent non-executive
Directors, Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman) and Mr. Jiang Qian.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have
been reviewed with reference to the Code which is available on
the Company’s website and website of the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee’s responsibilities are to review
and consider the structure, size and composition of the Board
regularly and make recommendation on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.
Its duties include making recommendation to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee
is provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties.
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Set out below is the summary of work of the Nomination
Committee done in 2020:

— made recommendation to the Board on matters relating
to, inter alia, nomination of candidates to the Board and
re-election of retiring Directors;

— reviewed the board diversity policy and nomination policy;

— reviewed the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee;

— conducted an annual review of the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors; and

— reviewed the Board composition and structure.

According to the Bye-Laws, the Board has the power from
time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board.

The Nomination Committee also nominated and the Board
recommended Mr. Wu Ming Gai, Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan,
Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy and Ms. Chan Man Yi to retire by
rotation and, being eligible, to offer themselves for re-election
by shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming 2021 annual
general meeting.

In considering the nomination of appointment and/or
re-appointment of Directors, the Nomination Committee assessed
the relevant candidates on criteria such as integrity, experience,
skill, professional qualifications, independent mind and ability
to commit time etc, and made recommendation to the Board for
approval.

The secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
shall call a meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite
nominations of candidates from the Director(s) for consideration
by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
may also put forward candidates who are not nominated by the
Director(s). The factors which would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate for Director include, inter alia, reputation for integrity,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that
are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy,
willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as the
Director, diversity of the Board, and such other perspectives
appropriate to the Company’s business. The Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year.
Details of individual attendance of its members are set out in the
table below:

Names

i

Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman)
REEL LT (FE)

Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy
mH{CELE

Mr. Jiang Qian

Bk L

The Company has formulated the board diversity policy in
August 2013 aiming at setting out the approach on diversity of the
Board of the Company.

The Board recognises the importance of having a diverse
Board in enhancing the board effectiveness and corporate
governance. A diverse Board will include and make good use
of differences in the skills, industry knowledge and experience,
education, background and other qualities, etc. of Directors
and does not discriminate on the ground of race, age, gender
or religious belief. These differences will be taken into account
in determining the optimum composition of the Board and when
possible should be balanced appropriately.

The Nomination Committee has responsibility for identifying
and nominating for approval by the Board, candidates for
appointment to the Board. It takes responsibility in assessing
the appropriate mix of experience, expertise, skills and diversity
required on the Board and assessing the extent to which the
required skills are represented on the Board and reviewing
effectiveness of the Board.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing
and reporting to the Board in relation to Board diversity.

Board appointments will be based on merit and candidates will

be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Selection of candidates to join the Board will be, in part,
dependent on the pool of candidates with the necessary
knowledge, experience, skills, educational background and
other qualities. The final decision will be based on merit and
contribution the chosen candidate will bring to the Board.

The Board considers that Board diversity, including gender
diversity, is a vital asset to the business.

At present, the Nomination Committee has not set any
measurable objectives to implement the board diversity policy.
However, it will consider and review the board diversity policy and
setting of any measurable objectives from time to time.

On appointment to the Board, each newly appointed Director
receives a comprehensive induction package covering business
operations, policy and procedures of the Company as well as the
general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being a Director to
ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Company has adopted dividend policy, the dividend
policy does not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio.
In considering any dividend, the Board shall consider the actual
and expected financial performance of the Group, retained
earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each
of the members of the Group, the level of the Group’s debts to
equity ratio, return on equity and the relevant financial covenants,
any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group’s lenders or other contractual restrictions, the Group’s
expected working capital requirements and future expansion
plans, general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Group, and any other factors that the Board deems
appropriate. The Board has the absolute discretion to recommend
any dividends.

KEABNMAEETEHBNBARTFREESAAEEMN
FTHE K% TR HEEIREMEENOAEM
o RBRRTEGAE AEH AT A2 2 A K AT I AR
BKRAEEETRZEMABER -

EXEeRR EFENEZTL(BRERNZT
EIRAEBNEREE -

BAl REZEGHAREFTEKEZTILERE
MAIZERAAERR - A - EETREZEBRES
EFEEeNELZTEBRREMAFERREZFL

EXZEMAEZSR  SRHRENESTHE
SEEMNRERANER  MEARBZERHKERE K
REEF  AREREZEZ KR ZEZEREEAME
NEREFRDANBAGE(LEMRADEEME
EEMRETHRE -

AARIE MBS BR - Mk BB BRI AT
BAEBENREIRMNEX - ZRIKMEMKER - EF
ERZEAEENERRFARAPBRR  ARFR
AEBEKRERARANRBERNMADIKERE - A%
BB RKF - RAD R R AR MR
%)~ AN E T A T BE 5 A0 A AR B S A A9 £E (o] IR
FEMAENRT AEENFEHLEESHTREKR
RIESRATE - BREERN ARBRBOERBEH
RAEHAREXBRYBRARRAELEZEN
HRIEZR UAREFER/AENTAMEMLE
R -EESHEBREMRSABBYEBIGE -

Annual Report 20205 #



Director’s training is an ongoing process. During the year,
Directors received from the Company updates on changes and
development to the legislative and regulatory environments in
which the Company operates. Directors participated in continuous
professional development such as attending seminars to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Company had received record of the trainings from each Director
relating to development and refreshment of their knowledge and
skills.

EERIDNHERRE RAFER  EFEX
RARBEBARAKERBEMEZILEAREE
RENEPLERNENESN EF2HFEF
XRE - W2NHHENBRILIRITHNHER
O BREABEOANBNEEZTSIELIREN
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Attending expert briefings/
seminars/conferences
relevant to the business or

Directors Reading regulatory updates Directors’ duties
HEABEKH
EsREL
HEXENE
BE=x MEEEEHRER mHE &8

Executive Directors
HiTE=E

Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan
BR 3k IR 22 &=

Mr. Wu Ming Gai

HA B4 1 e A

Non-executive Directors
FHITES

Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy
=HR{CEAE

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen
HERHELLE

Mr. Chen Albert

IR 7 18 5% 4

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES

Ms. Chan Man Yi

PR FER L

Ms. Leung Yin Ting

R IE L+

Mr. Jiang Qian

Rk T
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The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as required under the Code. The major roles
and functions of the Board in respect of the corporate governance

are:

to develop and review the Company’s policy and practices
on corporate governance; and

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and
Directors and the Company’s compliance with the Code.

The Board had considered the following corporate governance
matters for 2020:

review of the policy and practices adopted by the
Company and training for Directors, etc.

review of usage of annual caps on the continuing
connected transactions of the Group

review of compliance with the Code and disclosure of
Corporate Governance Report

review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company

The Company Secretary is appointed a representative from an
external secretarial services provider as the company secretary
of the Company. The primary contact person of the Company
with the Company Secretary is Mr. Wu Ming Gai, the executive
Director. The role of the Company Secretary is to ensure effective
information flows and communication among Directors, as well
as between shareholders and management of the Company. The
Company Secretary is also responsible for advising the Board on
governance matters. All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary. During the year, the Company
Secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
trainings to update his skills and knowledge.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors for the Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed
that in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020, all Directors
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code.

The Company has also established written guidelines
regarding securities transactions on no less exacting terms of the
Model Code for specific individual who may have access to inside
information in relation to the securities of the Company.

The Audit Committee reviewed engagement letter and report
from the external auditor of the Company, McMillan Woods,
confirmed its independence. The Audit Committee also approves
their appointment, discusses the scope of their audit, approved
the audit fees, and the scope and appropriate fees for any non-
audit services requested to be provided by external auditors.

McMillan Woods provided annual audit services in respect of
the Company’s consolidated financial statements prepared under
International Financial Reporting Standards for the year ended
31 December 2020. The consolidated financial statements are
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules.

During the year, remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s
auditors, McMillan Woods and other McMillan Woods network
firms, is as follows:

Services rendered: HK$
Audit services 340,000
Non-audit services
— Review of interim financial information 60,000
— Taxation services 5,000
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The Board recognises its responsibility to ensure the
Company maintains a sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The Group’s risk management and
internal control systems are designed and established to ensure
that assets are safeguarded against improper use or disposal,
relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and complied
with, reliable financial and accounting records are maintained in
accordance with relevant accounting standards and regulatory
reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact on the
Group’s performance are appropriately identified and managed.
Review of the Group’s risk management and internal controls
covering major financial, operational and compliance controls,
as well as risk management functions. The risk management and
internal control systems can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, as they
are designed to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives.

The Group has not established an internal audit, but has
engaged an external professional consultant to perform the
work of internal audit function and during the year, the external
professional consultant had reviewed and assessed the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems and reported to the
audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”). The review
would identify the risks associated with the business of the Group
by considering both internal and external factors and events which
include politics, economy, technology, environmental, social and
staff. Each of risks has been assessed and prioritised based on
their relevant impact and occurrence opportunity. The relevant
risk management strategy would be applied to each type of risks
according to the assessment results.

The external consultant, has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2020 and is not aware of
any significant internal control and risk management weaknesses
nor significant breach of limits or risk management policies,
and considers that the current internal control systems of the
Company are effective and adequate and that the qualifications
and experience of the staff, performing accounting and financial
reporting functions and the training programmes of the Company
as well as the experiences and resources for setting the budget of
the Company are adequate. The Company has complied with the
requirements under C.2.1 to C.2.5 and C.3.3 of the Code relating
to risk management and internal control.
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In addition to the review of risk management and internal
controls undertaken by the external professional consultants, the
external auditor also assessed the adequacy and effectiveness
of certain key risk management and internal controls as part of
their statutory audits. Where appropriate, the external auditor’s
recommendations are adopted and enhancements to the risk
management and internal controls will be made.

The Board has received a confirmation from the management
of the Company on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system.

The Company is committed to a consistent practice of
timely, accurate and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material
information about the Group. The Company has adopted a Policy
on Disclosure of Inside Information which sets out the obligations,
guidelines and procedures for handling and dissemination of
inside information. With these guidelines and procedures, the
Group has management controls in place to ensure that potential
inside information can be promptly identified, assessed and
escalated for the attention of the Board to decide about the need
for disclosure.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider
that the Company has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that, for
this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide
our shareholders with detailed information about the Company
so that they can exercise their rights as shareholders in an
informed manner. The Company has adopted a shareholders’
communication policy.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to
ensure its shareholders are kept well informed of key business
imperatives. These include annual general meeting, annual report,
interim report, various notices, announcements and circulars.

At the annual general meeting held on 22 June 2020 (2020
AGM”), a separate resolution was proposed by the chairman of
the 2020 AGM in respect of each separate issue, including re-
election of retiring Directors. The Chairman of the Board and
the Chairman and members of Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee, and Remuneration Committee and representatives of
McMillan Woods attended the 2020 AGM to answer questions of
shareholders. Procedure for conducting a poll were explained by
the chairman of the 2020 AGM at the 2020 AGM.
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Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Wu Ming Gai (Chairman)

MR E S A (/)

Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan (CEO)
BR &K MR 22 &= (77 B4 3)

Non-Executive Directors
FHITES

Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy
=HR{CEE

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen
EREEE

Mr. Chen Albert

R M 18 5E A4

Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHTES

Ms. Chan Man Yi

PR &+

Ms. Leung Yin Ting

RIEE L

Mr. Jiang Qian

it e

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will
be held on 17 June 2021 which will be conducted by way of poll.

2020 AGM
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The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each
year as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called a special
general meeting (“SGM”). Set out below are procedures by which
shareholders may (a) convene a SGM; (b) put forward enquires to
the Board; and (c) put forward proposals at general meetings. The
procedures are subject to the Bye-Laws and applicable legislation
and regulation.

Shareholder(s) of the Company (“Shareholder(s)”) holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right to vote at general meetings of the Company may, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company signed and deposited in accordance with
the bye-laws of the Company and Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, require the Directors to call a special general
meeting for the transaction of business specified in the
requisition.

Shareholders may, at any time, direct enquiries to the
Board. All enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong or by email to cs@cocoon.holdings for the attention
of the Board.
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Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote
at general meetings of the Company or not less than 100
shareholders may, at their expense, provide a written
request to the attention of the company secretary of the
Company signed and deposited in accordance with the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to
propose a person for election as Director is available on
the Company’s website.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were no
changes in any of the Company’s constitutional documents.

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. The statement of
the Independent Auditor about their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on page 66 to 73.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and
continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Cocoon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 74 to 155,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

(i) Valuation of unlisted financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"); and

(ii) Allowance of the Group’s loan notes under expected
credit loss ("ECL") model.

Key Audit Matter
BRETER

Valuation of unlisted financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)

Refer to significant accounting policies in note 4, critical
judgement and estimates in note 5, relevant disclosures in notes
7 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group had unlisted financial asset at FVTOCI of
approximately HK$30,600,000 measured at fair value as at
31 December 2020. The fair value of this financial asset was
assessed by the management based on valuations performed
by an independent company of professional valuer (“Valuer”)
engaged by the Group.
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The valuation of the unlisted financial asset at FVTOCI involved
significant judgement and estimates, including the determination
of valuation methodology and the selection of different inputs to
the valuation model.
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Our procedures in relation to this matter included:

BMEBEEENEFETE -

— Evaluating the expertise and independence of the
Valuer;

— FHAEEEANERERBILIE

— Checking the accuracy of the historical data used in
the valuation model;

— REGERUFERNELBENERKE

— Challenging the appropriateness of the key
assumptions applied in the valuation model, with
reference to historical performance of each investee
and our understanding of their respective businesses
and industries;

— HEAEEEEDERABRERRONEZTE 022
BEABMBRETHNELRRALRBMEES B EZBH KT
FHBAE
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Key Audit Matter
BERENEE

We identified the valuation of unlisted financial asset at FVTOCI
as a key audit matter as it accounted for approximately 16% of
total Group’s assets (by value) as at 31 December 2020 and
was significant to the Group’s capital and financial performance
due to a higher degree of complexity, and the significance of
management’s judgements and unobservable inputs involves
in the valuations. The valuation of these unlisted financial
instrument involve the application of unobservable inputs such
as discount rates, discount of lack of marketability, discount of
lack of control, estimated production volume, commodity price
index and etc. With different valuation techniques, inputs and
assumptions applied, the valuation results can vary significantly.
BHMBRAAREREZEEMBERINENFE LTS EENLE
BrlRAREFSFE RERAR-_Z_ZEF+-_A=1+—H
A BEEEAEEMN16%(REEG)  YEEREHEMIEMD
o EEENEARMBRERAEZE URBEIREEEN
BERAGEAIHEBAE ZF LT 2RI ANGEDSNER
NATBEBAE  MBEIRE - RZ M5Bz & R ES
B2HE L ESE AREREEE -KATRONMGERDT
WABERBRIXAIEHAEEARELBREEZR -

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZRERAR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRMWBEANATEERAREETESE

— engaging a valuation specialist to assist us to review
the appropriateness of the valuation approach and
methodology, the accuracy of the calculations in
the valuation model and the market data used on
a sample basis, and the reasonableness of the
components comprising the discount rate; and

— ZEMfEERGHEMABTREEERTENS B
R ERE R et 8 NPT A ™S8R (AR ) B2
M ARTREZAXBONESEMLE : &

— Reviewing the appropriateness of the disclosure in
the consolidated financial statements.
— BEREAMBHREAARBENSBEIL -



Key Audit Matter
ERENEE

Allowance of the Group’s loan notes under the expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model

Refer to significant accounting policies in note 4, critical
Jjudgement and estimates in note 5 and its relevant disclosures in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

We identified the allowance of loan notes as a key audit matter
due to the significant degree of management’s judgement in
assessing their expected credit losses (“ECL”).

BN ERZENRER AARETEE  DHREERERAT
HEERCEEBR((HEREEBRE DR RENHALR -

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had four trenches of loan
notes designated at amortised costs with gross carrying value of
approximately HK$111,152,000 (“Loan Notes”) and allowance of
HK$12,701,000 was made under lifetime ECL model.
RZZEZZF+_A=1+—H ES5BENEEEREREHEKAE
HENERZE  AEREMAENA111,152,0008 T ([ERZE]) -
ERE2MEHEEBEER T ML 8% 1#E12,701,0007% 7T ©

In assessing the allowance of ECL of the Loan Notes,
management applied judgement in assessing each issuer
of Loan Notes individually based on respective credit risk
characteristics and the likelihood of recovery, taking into account
the nature of these issuers, their geographical locations and
industries, and applying ECL rates to respective gross carrying
amounts of Loan Notes. The ECL rates are determined based on
historical credit losses experienced and were adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of Loan Notes’ issuers to redeem
their Loan Notes upon maturity.
RABERZENEREEBERES TREERARK  ERN
EREBEETASENGEERREARKEKREBEOAEME - I
ERZEHTANGEE HMBUERAETEERNFEERRZR
BEAAN UHEREBRSANAREEEAENREEEEEX -
EHEEEREDENBEGERRAEE  WARAERMEANR
RIEMHER  NEEEFRZEBRTARIBEBEEEERRE 2
BENHEBRERE -

We have identified the allowance of the Loan Notes under the
ECL model as a key audit matter due to considerable amount
of judgment and estimation being required in conducting
recoverability and ECL assessment as mentioned in the
foregoing paragraph.

BN EREEEEEXETERZENRBERT AARETS
B -REAMM E—BRAAM - #1700 E MR TEHEE &R
hEEREHIE R MEE -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRMWBEANATEERAREETEE

EEFENEBERBNCELRA(BHEEEER)EXT
HY 72 1

HABHN T4 m E B2 HR - BT a5 49 5 52 4 B 71
18 5T A R B IEAR & B B R T 22/ 19 16 B 3¢ 57 -

Our procedures in relation to this matter included:

HMPBEREEENEF S

evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over credit
control, debt collection and estimate of ECL;
AEEEEES  WREBREFEBEEBENH
BRI RE B REERRM

assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s ECL
models by examining the model inputs used by
management to form such judgements, including
testing the accuracy of the historical default data,
evaluating whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information including
the economic variables and assumptions used in
each of the economic scenarios and their probability
weightings and assessing whether there was an
indication of management bias when recognising loss
allowances; and

iR S B IR E R B B P A A AR AL B A BRIR AT
i EEEEHCEFERENAEG  BFEAIFAB
EROBEBENERE HEBESEEXEOME AT
BN R AT E R (BB 2 EZAREK
BEATHARKEEBRILE)EEMFELFHER
AT ENRBETREERERABERBORE &

inspecting settlements after the financial year end
relating to the Loan Notes as at 31 December 2020.
RUBEFEAREREFR _ZE_TF+_HA=1+—
HOERREREERSR -
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The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information in the
Company’s annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZRERAR

EEFHHEMEHNAERE - EMEHNBREER
AFRANMBEN ETREGEVBRREEEK
fPI 5L Lk B HH A AR BRED ] 5 o

BPEGAVBRENELLTRERLMBEER -
BT TEHZEEMESEREARANET SR

BEBMEEAMBBREINES  RMANEER
BIEEMES FBREd  TEEMES RS ELR
EMBHRERABRMNEZTBETAERNBRFRE
EAEBREUTFHFEEAHERRANER - ERN
EMPEATHIHE DRERMARREMEEFEE
ARERRL - RAFTEREZEE - EE&HE @ B
REEMRSE °

§$ BB ERBEEE 2 EREZ &8 2 8 M8 B R
B 7% R R A <’&7{|*1§'J>E'Jﬁﬁgﬁiﬁiﬁﬁ
EMERAANGAUBHRE YEBEESRAN
mEGKEMBHREMEBLENE BRILERE - &
FHREMBRENFERFRIERMEBNEAE
R PR At

ERBEAVBRRR EFRANE E&5H
FERKZENREN YEERBATRERFSERLE
EHENER URERAKELERSTER  RIFE
EZEER EEEBREIFLLE  HFEEOER
MBRITER -

ERZBEHDEERTEBEESBNBHRSR
EONBE -



Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

BAMER RHSEAMBBERERBESARE
EHRRFRERMEBNEAERRARE A E
RiE THASERRMERNZREMFS - RIFAE
[ ETUERER)BRERMOBR - Rt 2N AR
SFHEEMEN - KM ISR LRENAR REM
H AT ERAREEFAERE -aBREBEEGKF
MRE BTRERERBTABNERETNETHE
X-—BRERBAFERBEER - BRERA AT A
HRFFRERSIE  WRAERPEMEBHER
ERAEFESEVBERREMERBE S M B H
RETIEH BB R E - AIE B A0 58 BR BRL 7T 4 AR 1F
BEX-

EREBEEBEAENETENNBES  HFE
RTERHAE  RETERRREE - BT

— 5B A0 FF Al el O RRRE K 85 AR 1 1 BUAR A B S
BREEERHERRAER - Rt RATT
BAEFAREELRR  ARERTRM
BEMERTEE  FREMERNER - A
REFFAIE S R &ER RiE  E5EF  E
BRERA - SORBERAERIEH 2 £ - B REE
ZEANGFMEFNERERRANERS
RAREERFRAERMEFNERBRBRAD
[\ B o

B EE AR ES R EE S
FHEF BEHLEY BEEANBEH
MERMERER -

— HEEEMRASTBRRNREERELS
FHEFTMERERENSIEMY -
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— Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZRERAR
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ka Ki

Practising Certificate Number P0O6633

3/F, Winbase Centre,

208 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

Gross proceeds from disposals of
trading securities

Revenue
Other revenue
Other gains and (losses)

Other operating expenses
Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income,

net of tax:

Item that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

— Fair value gain on financial
assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”)

Loss and total comprehensive
income for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

Loss per share
Basic

Diluted

Note
k=2

HERXSEHFNTERIBRAE

A 9

H A 10

HEugas & (EiE) 11

Hfh a2

B 75 Bk AR 12

R i A &5 18 13

5% 14

FEEE

H2mEW = (ARBR) :

R T B D EEEm
EHEH -
—EBRAABEREMEEKS

TR (TR A A ERH A
2EK=EINER]) 2SR
BEMNALERZ

RATBEEAELHFABER
E2HEW AR

BREE
H A 16
B

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZRERAR

2020
—E=%F
HK$°000
TR

5,096

8,105
175
(4,673)

3,607

(6,202)
(1,571)

(4,166)

(4,166)

1,200

(2,966)

(HK$0.015% 7T)

(HK$0.015% 7T)

2019
—E-NEF
HK$’000
T T

53,057

8,988

(34,337)

(25,349)

(6,283)
(3,729)

(35,361)

(35,361)

400

(34,961)

(HK$0.207% JT)

(HK$0.203% 7T)



Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Loan notes

Current assets

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Loan notes

Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss (“FVTPL”)
Financial assets at FVTOCI

Due from securities brokers
Bank balance

Current liabilities

Due to securities brokers
Other payables and accruals
Lease liabilities

Promissory notes

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities
Promissory notes

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

Net asset value per share
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The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 155 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30
March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wu Ming Gai

A 88 fE

Director

EF

Note
B &t

18
19(a)

21
22

21
23

24
25

26

19(b)
29

19(b)
29

31
33

34

As at

31 December
2020
R-ZEB-2HF
+=B=+—H
HK$’000

FRET

197

46,413

46,614

633
52,038

46,944

30,600
801
7,905

138,921

1,701
732
208
224

2,865
136,056

182,670

19,920
19,920
162,750
35,973
126,777

162,750

HK$0.4538 T

At 31 December 2020
R-ZTE-_TFE+=-A=+—H
As at
31 December
2019
RZTE—NEF
+=—R=+—8”
HK$’000
FAET

10
475

3,000
75,913

79,398

20,874
5,144

26,806
29,400
12

28,187

110,423

2,011
1,347

337
3,977
106,446

185,844

208
19,920

20,128
165,716
35,973
129,743

165,716

HK$0.46 7% 7T

FTAR5 B NGV ERRAETEN _E-_—F
“A=THHAEREEAZERATIALIREES

BR 7 X
Director

EFE

Chan Carman Wing Yan
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

At 1 January 2019

Loss and total comprehensive
incomel(expenses) for the year

Capital reorganisation (note 31)

Rights Issue (note 31)

Transfer of reserve

Changes in equity for the year

At 31 December 2019

At 1 January 2020
Loss and total comprehensive
income/(expenses) for the year

At 31 December 2020

RZE-n%-A-A

EREERZEHA/
(R%)e8
RAREA(H231)
ik (m2s1)
BN

FERERE
RZE-NE+ZA=1-A
RZE-ZF-5-A
ERBERZEAMA/(FR)

Aag

KZB-5t2A=1-8

Share
capital

kx

HK$'000
TiEn

119,909

(107,918)
23,982

(83,936)

35,973

35,073

35,073

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZRERAR

Share
premium

RfiaE
33(e))
HK§000
TR

200,377

(200377)
H313

(159,064)

41,313

41,313

41,313

Attributable to owners of the Company

Contributed
surplus

EfRG
33(b)i
HK$'000

THL

107,918

107,918

107,918

107,918

107,918

ARRERARSE
Financial
assets at

FVTOCI
reserve
RAREREL
2EHRTIE
SRHEENRRE
33(b)/(ii)
HK$'000

TER

8,676

400

1,824

2,24

10,900

10,900

1,200

12,100

Accumulated
loss

it ER

HK§'000
TR

(193,580)

(35,361)
200377

(1,824)

163,192

(30,369)

(30,388)

(4,166)

(34,554)

Total

reserve

L

HK§'000
T

15,473

(34,961)

107,918
41,313

114,270

129,743

129,743

(2966)

126,777

Total

a3

HK$'000
Tk

135,382

(34,961)

65,295

30,334

165,716

165,716

(2966)

162,750



Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Finance costs
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Fair value losses on trading securities
Fair value losses on convertible
bonds designated at financial
assets at FVTPL
Gains (losses) on deemed disposals of
unlisted convertible bonds
designated at financial assets
at FVTPL
— unlisted convertible bonds
designated at financial assets
at FVTPL and consideration
receivable to exchange for a loan
note of LN2 (as defined below)

— Deposit on top of cash
consideration amounting
HK$10,000,000 to exchange for
a loan note of LN4 (as defined
below)

— Deposit and a loan note of LN1
(as defined below) to exchange
for securities investment listed
in overseas

Loss on disposals of loan notes
Loss on disposal of unlisted equity
investments designated at
financial assets at FVTOCI
Allowance for ECL of loan notes
Allowance for ECL of deposits
and other receivables

Operating loss before working

capital changes

(Increase)/decrease in trading
securities

Decrease in other receivables,
deposits and prepayments

(Increase)/decrease in amounts due
from securities brokers

(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to
securities brokers

(Decrease)/increase in other payables
and accruals

Note
B i

BEFHELNRERE
% 5 1 18

CEE

TENTON

B 75 % 45

OERN VT

EREEENE

R EHFZAAEREE
BERBAREREBRRIIE
2% BB E R A SR E 5
R EBA
HERIEIEE /R ARERE
SRR ERMEENI L
m AR E S U Es (B51R)

— EEEARAALERIEZR
BRI SMmEENIE
T A B R E A5 DA AT
ARRBERER2(F
EALTX)HNERZEMN
fE U R (B

— ARRBERERA(FE
EZERTXONEREZEED
I 4 K /£10,000,000;8
TR &

35(a)(i)

35(a)(ii)
— ARRBEIN ETHES
FEMZ S ME K
ZE1I(EERTXOMNE
RER
HEERERER
HERTETAZAREREME
HKEINEz SR EERIE
TR EREEE
EREZRBEHEESEERE
EehHEMEKRKBHEES
BB

35(a)(iii)

Rt 2 BES PN IRERBR
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D

FEWE 5 e R M),
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F& 15 78 55 8 42 FROR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
 E_F_TF+-_A=T—HLEFE

2020 2019
—E-%F —ThF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET F& T
(4,166) (35,361)
(8,105) (8,988)
1,571 3,729

6 9

278 347
(12,105) 9,025
2,075 2,146
(329) —
(1,378) —
3,615 —
— 2,064

— 1,676
11,931 2,598
1,592 538
(5,015) (22,217)
(2,219) 21,887
630 352
(789) —
(310) (3,179)
(615) (2,454)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

Cash used in operations
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Subscription of a loan note of LN4
(as defined below)

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares under

rights issue, net of expenses
Principal portion of lease payments
Repayment of shareholder’s loan
Redemption of promissory notes
Interest paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in
cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of year

REMAZES
BRAE
B AT 15 5

RETHFIAFRE

REZBZEERE
ABEREBA(EZRETON
ERFEE

REEFBFRMAFRE

BREITBH2RESARE
BIRERBETROAER
MBREBEREZ
HENROARES B
EERRE R

fE [0 A 22

B F A

MEEB (A FEzRE
b

ReREASEHEZ(RD)
12 0%
FNRERBAESFR

FREESRBREEH

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents RE KRB EZHE o7

Bank balances

HRAT A R
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Note
B iE

2020
—s-%x

—_ = —

HK$°000
FET

(8,318)
(16)

(8,334)

(10,000)

(10,000)

(282)

(1,666)

(1,948)

(20,282)

28,187

7,905

7,905

2019

—ET—NF

HK$’000
TAT

(5,611)
(14)

(5,625)

23,408

4,779

28,187

28,187



Cocoon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands as an exempted company and continued
in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of its registered office is Walkers
Corporate (Bermuda) Limited, Park Place, 55 Par-la-Ville
Road, Third Floor, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal
place of business of the Company is Room 14A, Fortune
House, 61 Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.
The principal activities of the Company are investments
insecurities listed on recognised stock exchanges and
unlisted investments with a potential for earnings growth and
capital appreciation.

The investment objective of the Company is to achieve an
enhanced earnings stream and capital appreciation from its
investments.

The Company has adopted the following investment policies:

(i) the Company may, at its sole discretion, invest in any
securities, listed or unlisted, including warrants, money
market instruments, bank deposits, currency investments,
commodities, options, convertible securities, futures
contracts and precious metals or any other forms
of investments in securities which would enable the
Company to achieve good income or capital appreciation.

(ii) the Company may, for hedging purposes only, buy, write
or sell warrants, covered warrants, options or traded
options on its underlying investments. The Company
may also buy or sell futures contracts on stock indices or
shares (if any) as a means to hedge against adverse price
movements of its investments.

(iii

~

in order to hedge against interest rate risks, the Company
may enter into forward interest rate agreements, interest
rates and US treasury bond futures contracts and
interest rate swaps. The Company may also, for hedging
purpose only, purchase and write (sell) put or call options
or options on futures on interest rates. The Company
will only engage in transactions in options and futures
which are traded on a recognized securities or futures
exchange.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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(iv) cash pending investment, reinvestment or distribution will
be placed in bank deposits in any currency, obligations
of the United States or Hong Kong governments, their
respective agencies or instrumentalities, or securities and
other instruments denominated in any currency issued
by various governments or international development
agencies.

The Company may not:

(i) either on its own or in conjunction with any connected
person, take legal, or effective, management control of
any company or other entity in which it invests or controls
more than 30% (or such other percentage as may from
time to time be specified in the Takeovers Code as being
the level for triggering a mandatory general offer) of the
voting rights in such company or other entity; and

(ii) invest in any company or other entity if as a result, more
than 20% of the Company’s net asset value as at the date
of such investment would be invested in any one such
company or other entity.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which in collective term
includes all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are discussed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
and amendments that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Below provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has applied the Amendments to Reference
to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards and
the following amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to IAS 1 and Definition of Material
IAS 8
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate
IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Benchmark Reform

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendments
to IFRS 16, COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions.

The application of the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards and the
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no
material effect on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior periods and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Other than the amendments to IFRS 16, COVID-19
Related Rent Concessions, the Group has not applied any
new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective for the financial year beginning 1 January
2020. These new and revised IFRSs include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and related
Amendments!
Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts's
Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to Conceptual Framework?
Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 - Phase 2¢
and IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current

or Non-current and the related
amendments to International
Interpretation 5 (2020)"

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

Amendment to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020
cycle?

1. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

5 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than
IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So
far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. goodwill and
share-based payments that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below:

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties, to determine whether it has control. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net assets
of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating
to that subsidiary and any related accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between the
non-controlling interests and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZRERAR

SEARRIZENR S - R RAREHR &7
TAEEH - RERBEITRTUEE  BFIER
SIRHEBEBRTAMBBEELERE - AF
Alim - B RARMNEARRERFEFLK
o AMREAEERBOBRKFTE —B -

R ERENB AR T ER N EEEB
RARBMES - FEHERSERSIANE
REMBURRRERGAREEHRATIR -
SRR AR A B R E M2 E K
RARFEBRa A BREED KT IFE
SR EARRER AN AR -

B kHEM2ERSNSARBISEER
RARGEA AR IEZEG S - B I &8 5
BOREHIEREEHR/ER -

RN B 5 Y A B RN B R A A
ERESEDE/EDZ S (AEEAR AN
BAEANGDETRD)ZE - ZH S M
SRR RE SR T HE LR
BRARTHEBEENED - FEAIFEHIE
BENSREXNRIEBNEENAREZ
BEMEREERNERERLE BN AR A
MBEE A °

EARBNPABRRERA - BRIERKERE
MRENBERRERE (RBREDERE
BERENREER) B RAKAREREE
BIE -



Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates at the end of
each reporting period. Gains and losses resulting
from this translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

(ii) Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

(iii

=

All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of the
net investment in foreign entities are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part of
the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or
loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the term of the lease
but not exceeding 5 years

Office equipment 20%

Furniture and fixtures 20%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where
the customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets
which, for the Group are primarily laptops and office
furniture. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any
lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, except for
the right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
investment property are carried at fair value.
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Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way,
a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is
a change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
The only exceptions are any rent concessions which
arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and which satisfied the conditions set out
in paragraph 46B of IFRS 16. In such cases, the
group took advantage of the practical expedient set
out in paragraph 46A of IFRS 16 and recognised
the change in consideration as if it were not a lease
modification.
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When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified
as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the case,
the lease is classified as an operating lease.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
the Group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. All recognised financial
assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.
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Debt investments held by the Group are classified into
one of the following measurement categories:

(i) amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

(ii) Fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”) — recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both the collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected credit losses, interest
income (calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

(iii) FVTPL, if the investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised in profit
or loss.

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (nonrecycling) until the investment is disposed
of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI,
are recognised in profit or loss as other income.
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A receivables is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Other receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument under IFRSs. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.
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Other payables are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
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Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during the
period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation of
capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Such grants are presented under “other
income”.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease liabilities,
the Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications of
impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is written
down as an expense through the consolidated statement
of profit or loss to its estimated recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal of the
individual asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates that
reflect the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset/cash-generating unit whose impairment is being
measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated
first against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata
amongst the other assets of the cash-generating unit.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused
by changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to
the extent that they reverse the impairment.

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
IFRS 9 (including other receivables, loan notes, due from
securities brokers and bank balances). The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.
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The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for other
receivables, loan notes and due from securities brokers,
and measures the lifetime ECL for portfolios of other
receivables, loan notes and due from securities brokers
that share similar economic risk characteristics. The
ECL on these assets are estimated using an analysis of
assets by risk level of customers and apply a probability-
weighted estimate of the credit losses within the relevant
risk type. The probability-weighted estimates of the credit
losses is determined based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information considered includes
the future prospects of the industries in which the
Group’s debtors operate, obtained from financial analysts
and governmental bodies, as well as consideration of
various external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor; and

— an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrate otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk if (i) the financial instrument has a low risk of default
(i.e. no default history); (ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term; and (iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers a
financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has
external credit rating of “investment grade” in accordance
with the globally understood definition or if an external
rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating
of “performing”. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there is no past due
amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable:

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group also
considers that default has occurred when the instrument
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade and loan receivables,
when the amounts are past due over one year, whichever
is earlier. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised directly
in profit or loss.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function
of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information as described
above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets,
this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount
at the reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts,
the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at
the reporting date, together with any additional amounts
expected to be drawn down in the future by default
date determined based on historical trend, the Group’s
understanding of the specific future financing needs of the
debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated
as the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. For a
lease receivable, the cash flows used for determining the
expected credit losses is consistent with the cash flows
used in measuring the lease receivable in accordance
with IFRS 16.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of
the instrument that is guaranteed, the expected loss
allowance is the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that
the Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtor
or any other party.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

Where lifetime ECL is measured to cater for cases
where evidence of significant increase in credit risk at
the individual instrument level may not yet be available.
The financial instruments are The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except
for investments in debt instruments that are measured
at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce the
carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement of
financial position.
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Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(if) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of a parent of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

(vii)A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services
to the Company or to a parent of the Company.
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Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving
estimations, which are dealt with below).

As mentioned in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had subscribed 20% equity interest
of an Anguilla incorporated private entity, Perfect Path
Limited (the “Perfect Path”). Despite the Group holds
20% of the voting power in Perfect Path, the unlisted
equity investment is designated at financial assets at
FVTOCI but not an associate under IAS 28 “Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures”. The management is
of the opinion that the Group does not have significant
influence over Perfect Path as (i) the Group has no right
to be represented in the board of directors of Perfect
Path; and (ii) the remaining equity interest, being 80%
equity interest of Perfect Path is owned by another single
shareholder other than the Group.

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month
ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or
stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.
IFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant
increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk
of an asset has significantly increased, the Group takes
into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward looking information.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

The unlisted investments of the Group designated at
financial assets at FVTPL or financial assets at FVTOCI
have been valued using the market observable data
of comparable listed companies adjusted for lack of
marketability discount or based on the expected future
cash flows discounted at current rates applicable for
items with similar terms and risk characteristics. These
valuations require the management to make estimates
about expected future cash flows, credit risk, volatility and
discount rates, and hence they are subject to uncertainty.
The aggregated fair value of the unlisted investments at
31 December 2020 was approximately HK$30,600,000
(2019: HK$48,920,000). Further details are set out in note
24 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group makes provision for impairment of loan notes,
deposits and other receivables based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as
well as forward—looking estimates at the end of reporting
period. The amount of the impairment loss based on
ECL model is measured at the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where the
future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise.

During the year, impairment losses of approximately
HK$11,931,000 (2019: HK$2,598,000) and HK$1,592,000
(2019: HK$538,000) had been recognised on loan notes
and deposits and other receivables respectively.
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The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, price risk, credit risk, interest rate
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The board of directors
review and agree policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below.

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk
as certain of the Group’s bank balances are denominated
in United State dollar (“US$”).

The Group considers the risk exposure to foreign
currency fluctuation is limited as long as the HK$ remains
pegged to the US$. This analysis is performed on the
same basis for the prior year.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency transactions,
assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

As set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s listed investments were
designated at financial assets at FVTPL are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Therefore,
the Group’s investments in listed equity securities are
exposed to equity price risk. The management manages
this exposure by monitoring the change of market prices
of the equity from time to time, and by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk profiles.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk. As at 31 December
2020, if the fair value of the Group’s listed investments
designated at financial assets at FVTPL had been 5%
higher/lower while all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s loss before tax would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$2,347,000 (2019: HK$364,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

The carrying amount of other receivables, deposits, loan
notes, due from securities brokers and bank balances
included in the statement of financial position represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
the Group’s financial assets.

The Group has certain exposure to concentrations of
credit risk. As at 31 December 2020, the Group has
significant concentrations of credit risk as the Group’s
100% (2019: 100%) of the carrying amount of loan notes
were subscribed from four issuers (2019: three issuers).

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has delegated
its finance team to develop and maintain the Group’s
credit risk grading to categories exposures according to
their degree of risk of default. The finance team uses
publicly available financial information and the Group’s
own historical repayment records to rate its major
debtors. The Group’s exposure and the credit rating of
its counterparties are continuously monitored and the
aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread
amongst approved counterparties.
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The Group’s current credit risk grading framework
comprises the following categories:

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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In default There is evidence indicating the asset is credit impaired Lifetime ECL credit impaired
EQ EREBXRPEEGSERE 2HREHEEEE  FERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off

financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect

of recovery

1 3 EEBRAEBAEBREVERE ASEBRRER

U [81 3K 18

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Company make periodic collective assessments as well
as individual assessments on the recoverability of other
receivables and deposits. The Group has assessed
that the ECL of other receivables and deposits was
approximately HK$1,592,000 (2019: HK$538,000) as at 31
December 2020 under 12m ECL model.

The Group measures loss allowances for loan notes
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different debtors,
the loss allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different debtors.

B EEE  MIERIA

REMEBUZRESME AARIESEH
HEMEBWARIZSR U E RZEEITERE

RERFEE - AEEFTE @ Kb B RIE
R _E_TFE+_A=+—HR+=A
BHEEEEREABE THNEREESIEBONA
1,592,000/ 7T (== — JL4F :538,0007C) °

AEBRZRERR2HABEEHEN B
EEFEREBERE ARAKEBERE
EEBRERRATABEHFAZHLERZDT
REBEBREN  HERBRBEINBHEREG
VWERAEBREBAZEHEE-—FRD -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for loan notes
as at 31 December 2020:

Current (not past due) B HA (K 460 H)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past three years. These rates are adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the loan
notes.

The credit risk on amounts due from securities brokers is
limited because the counterparties are well-established
securities broker firms in Hong Kong which are subject
to compliance requirement under Securities and Futures
(Client Money) Rules.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s loan notes, amounts due from/to securities
brokers, convertible bonds and promissory notes bear
interests at fixed interest rates and therefore are subject
to fair value interest rate risks.

The Group’s cash flow exposure to interest-rate risk
arises from its bank deposits. These bank deposits bear
interests at floating rates varied with the then prevailing
market condition.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZRERAR

TERRHAEBEAEER T _TF+_A
ST -HZERFEBREERARIREREES
BHER

Expected Gross carrying

loss rate amount Loss allowance
FEHEEE BEREE BAEE
HK$’'000 HK$’000

% FA& T FHT

11.43% 111,152 (12,701)

BHEEEXDENBE=FNEREELR
B - ZF L R LB AR K E B E IR
Z B R OB AROR ~ TR AR A e AN £ [
EXEBERAFHARLEBERARZBEEZNT
B

EREFCLEKENEERREARMN - B
RETEERELNELSRLT  HEANE
(BHREHE(EPRB)RADNERBAE -

RTGEROEEAREERYN  BAKNY L
mERERTAEBETRSEETRNE
7 o

AEENERRE  BEREAEBHFLLER
B AT EIRE 5 ROR Y RIRE E M R EEF
B -RAUtEEAALERNERR -

AREREREAGNFERRREBITF
W o BB RITE KRR RS A TR R
B F BRI KT HF L -



Except as stated above, the Group does not have other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the
end of reporting period, its income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. Sensitivity analysis on cash flow interest
rate risk has not been presented as the reasonably
possible changes in market interest rate will not have
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial

liabilities is as follows:

At 31 December 2020

Due to securities brokers
Other payables and accruals
Lease liabilities

Promissory notes

At 31 December 2019

Due to securities brokers
Other payables and accruals
Lease liabilities

Promissory notes

R-B=-%fF
+=ZA=t+-H
FE 1 3 35 48 A2 3ROR

HEN R REFER
HERE

AR
R-_ZT—hE

M =l
[ERT B 58 L A
HiE Rk ETER
HMEAE

EATE

On demand
and less than
1 year
RERR
—FHR
HK$'000
FAET

1,701
732
213

1,491

4,137

2,011
1,347

300
1,491

5,149

For the year ended 31 December 2020
 E_F_TF+-_A=T—HLEFE

BEXFEI  RBEHRR AKELE
EREMEAGFEEERAE  ERak
BHREREAREBIRMSHEES - i
RIGEHMENSEAEES RIS HAEE
MPBEBERBREATE At - XER
EREN KRR BREBMEDA -

AEENBRREAEHNERNARBRARDE
EFEFR UNEREGSEARSFHE AR
REEHMEEHRDPESHTE -

AEEMFTESRBERBESORTRR
EREMENIFOFTMT

Between
2 and 5 years

Between

1 and 2 years Over 5 years

—FEWME MEZERF BFEUE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET TAET

7,911 15,441 _
7,911 15,441 _
213 — =
1,491 12,899 10,200
1,704 12,899 10,200
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAET
Financial assets: cTREE
Financial assets at amortised cost NEBRKATENESREE 107,211 132,920
Financial assets at FVTPL BEAREREZERIENESRE
B 46,944 26,806
Financial assets at FVTOCI EAREREMAEZEKEIERZ
TREE 30,600 29,400
Financial liabilities: cREE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost NERKAFENESREE 22,577 23,615

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at
the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZRERAR

RAEVBRARAMRBAEBRCREE R
TRHEENEAcBEONESENARE °

AREREMB2HECHEAEENE TR

H o t|:1'%—Iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁuqﬁlﬂﬁ%ﬁ%—ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ
EXNHER UTAREFEREFAAAE
X BAREREMFERNGERIE AES
DE=ZTER :

A

ﬁ]il

tl

F-BREAE: EASEAEGERERREDN
HREESBEEERTS LRE *%%E’Jiﬁzfgﬁ

—BRBAE: ERE BRI HEINERH
EEFREEEIEAEZTEERNBAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
 E_F_TF+-_A=T—HLEFE

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers AEBHNRREAESHBEEE R ERERNE
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or MEESCHBERBRAEAREL = @ XHH
change in circumstances that caused the transfer. ] — (& -
2020
—E-F%F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—BX E-EX F=ZBRX &%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FER FER FER
Recurring fair value BHENRAAEBETE
measurements:
Financial assets at FVTPL RATERER KRR
WEmMEE
Equity securities held for R 5 IMEA RS

trading at market value listed % ' & mEEE &
in Hong Kong and the United BRER LT
States 46,944 — — 46,944
Convertible bonds designated 5 F AiZ A BN BR
at financial assets at FVTPL BRI e RMEEN
AERESs — — — —
Financial assets at FVTOCI RARERHEMEE R
mIECERMEE
Equity investments designated JEE AE A EREME
at financial assets at FVTOCI  HERzFIBREZ & RMEE

B AR R E — — 30,600 30,600
Total recurring fair value HENAREFE
measurements &5 46,944 — 30,600 77,544
2019
—ZE-NF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
=3 — =N F_EX E=[E R =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHE T FH& T FAxT FAxT
Recurring fair value BENARETE:
measurements:
Financial assets at FVTPL RAFEREBZREN
SREE ‘
Equity securities held for R 5 MR 8RR
trading at market value listed % ZMHEEE &5
in Hong Kong i) 7,286 — — 7,286

Convertible bonds designated  §F Ak A A ERERE
at financial assets at FVTPL PR 2 & Rb & E /) ] 8
BIES — — 19,520 19,520
Financial assets at FVTOCI BRAAEBEREMZEK
HIRCESREE
Equity investments designated #5F AR ARBEREME
at financial assets at FVTOCI MEWFIBEZ S /mEE

B IR & — — 29,400 29,400
Total recurring fair value FEHNDNERFE
measurements &5 7,286 — 48,920 56,206
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
there were no transfer of financial assets from Level 3 to
other levels of hierarchy.

The following table presents the movements in Level 3
instruments of the Group during the year.

Convertible
bonds
designated
at financial
assets at
FVTPL
EEH
BRAARE
Rig IR IR
ZEREE
WAERES
HK$’000
FER
At 1 January w—H—H 19,520
Total gains or losses EERBKRLEE
recognised
— in profit or loss (included — RiBzZE(BER
in revenue and other O EEE:
gains and losses) RE#E) (504)
— in other comprehensive ~ — R H ffh 2 [ W &
income } —
Disposals & (19,016)
At 31 December R+=-ZA=+—H —
Convertible
bonds
designated
at financial
assets at
FVTPL
& E
BA A
18 % BRI BR
ZEREARE
) A] #5325 5
HK$000
FHT
At 1 January w—H—H 39,715
Total gains or losses B iR BNk EE
recognised
— in profit or loss (included — KRBz (BER
in revenue and other O E-E &
gains and losses) RE#E) (881)
— in other comprehensive ~ — F H ffh 2 [ W &
income ) —
Disposals s (19,314)
At 31 December R+—-—A=+—H 19,520

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZRERAR

=

N E_ZE_ZEFRER=_FT—-NLF+ A
S+ —HLEFE VYEF=-EANESREE
EmEHAMER o

TRIBMRAFEAR  AKREE=ZERTA

2020
—ECEF
Private Equity
equity fund investments
designated designated
at financial at financial
assets at assets at
FVTPL FVTOCI Total
BEH EEAR
BARE DAEREM
REBHRIE 2ERSIE
CEMEE  CLMEE .
WAEES HRERS &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER THER FER
— 29,400 48,920
— — (504)
— 1,200 1,200
— — (19,016)
— 30,600 30,600
2019
—ZE-hF
Private Equity
equity fund investments
designated designated
at financial at financial
assets at assets at
FVTPL FVTOCI Total
L IEER 18 TE IR
BAARE DAERER
REZEIE 2ERRTIER
CERMEE  COoMBEE \
Wi EE S B % 4 3% & &5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET FAET
13,542 35,176 88,433
(4,542) (1,676) (7,099)
2 400 400
(9,000) (4,500) (32,814)
— 29,400 48,920



The Group’s directors are responsible for the fair value
measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including Level 3 fair value
measurements.

For Level 3 fair value measurements, the Group
engaged independent valuation experts with recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience to
perform the valuations.

The valuation techniques used and the key inputs to the
Level 3 fair value measurements are set out below:

Description Valuation technique

Equity investments Income Approach
designated at financial — Discount cash flow
assets at FVTOCI method

The information about the significant unobservable inputs
used in Level 3 fair value measurement is set out below.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
 E_F_TF+-_A=T—HLEFE

AEEMNEEFAREVBEBREMENEEME

BEARENE BRFZEBERIAEGNE -

BRE=-EXRARENE AKECERA
ERAEXREREROKBNBLHEFER
EITHE -

FEMMGERTLRESBRALELE
PRI A EHSIMT

i il {8 £ 9l
BERBAREREM Wtk —RER
2EHERINE 2R EFNHE
BEEMNBRERE

BRF=ZERAAEFETEANEENTDT
ABERBAENEEHIMT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

The fair value of the equity investments designated at
financial assets at FVTOCI is estimated using income
approach. The inputs into the valuation model as at
31 December 2020 were set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The higher of the price per share and lower of the
discount rate would increase the fair value of the equity
investments designated at FVTOCI. The lower of the price
per share and higher of the discount rate would decrease
the fair value of the equity investments designated at
FVTOCI.

For management purposes, the Group’s business activity
is organised into a single operating segment, being
investments in securities listed on recognised stock
exchanges and unlisted investments with a potential for
earnings growth and capital appreciation. Accordingly, no
operating segment information to be presented.

The Company’s revenue is solely generated from, and
non-current assets are located in, Hong Kong, based on
the location of the relevant Group entities’ operations.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
there were no dividend income from the Group’s unlisted
investments.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZRERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-T-_TF+_A=1+—HLLFE

2020
—g-%%
HK$°000
87

2020
—E-EF
HK$°000
FTH T

144

30
1

' }i.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

Unrealised fair value (losses)/gains on BEARERERRIEZEMEEZ
financial assets at FVTPL: KERRAREERE) W= :

— listed securities — Ftm#ESH

— unlisted convertible bonds designated — EBTEREALBEREREKER
at financial assets at FVTPL ZeREERIE LA EHR

&%
Net realised gain (loss) on disposals of HEEAALERERZRIEzEME
financial assets at FVTPL: ENE *:*Lﬁuﬂﬁlm(ﬁﬁ B)FE

— listed securities — EW#ESH

— unlisted convertible bonds designated — EBTAREALBEREREER
at financial assets at FVTPL Z R EERIE LA EHR

&%
Gain (loss) on disposals of certain HEATEEE TeMERE 2 W&
financial assets of: (E518) :

— unlisted convertible bonds designated — EBEAKRAANEREREKSR
at financial assets at FVTPL ZEMEBEER 3FJ: i A $5 34
and consideration receivable to BEEURATARZIBRERE
exchange for a loan note (note 21(a) B R E (A iE21(a))

— a deposit on top of cash — ARRBER
consideration amounting FHE# IR ©1K{E10,000,000
HK$10,000,000 to exchange for a BITHIR S (M 21(b))
loan note (note 21(b)

— a deposit and a loan note to — ARRBBINETBHFREDN
exchange for securities investment BeMEREE (Ha221(b))

listed in overseas (note 21(b)
Loss on disposals of private equity fund HEHR T AR ALBEREBEZENEZ
designated at financial assets at FVTPL CREENLEESHNERE

Net gain (loss) on financial assets at BEARERERRIENESREEN
FVTPL Yozt (&5 18 ) 5 58

Net realised loss on disposals of unlisted & F A& A o BN H A4 2 m ks

equity investments designated at HIRz eMEEMIE LMRERE
financial assets at FVTOCI KB &G FE

Net realised loss on disposals of loan HEERZEBENEEEHIEFH
notes

Impairment losses on loan notes, net EREBRRBEERE  FH

Impairment losses on deposits and other 124 & H i E W ZOREEE - ¥ 5
receivables, net

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZRERAR

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—BLFE

2020
2
HK$°000
TR

12,105

728

(2,075)

329

1,378

(3,615)

8,850

(11,931)

(1,592)

(4,673)

2019
—NF
HK$’000
TAT

(9,025)

(2,146)

(9,903)

(1,845)

(4,542)

(27,461)

(1,676)

(2,064)
(2,598)

(538)

(34,337)



For the year ended 31 December 2020
BT _EFTA=T—BHLEFE

2020 2019
—E_EHF —ET-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FHT
Imputed interest on shareholder’s loan % 3 & 3 {f & &1 & — 2,193
Imputed interest on promissory notes AN ZEHER S 1,379 1,317
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNE 18 14
Interest on other borrowings H b & A B 174 205
1,571 3,729
Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging the BRI EEE IR T3 & B
following:
2020 2019
—E_EHF —ET-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET THT
Auditor’s remuneration 1% SR B & 340 320
Management fees EEE 1,299 1,277
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BEREKETE
equipment 6 9
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 278 347
Employee benefits expenses: EERAMAX :
— Salaries, allowance and benefits — HE  RUEREYREF
in kind 1,505 1,591
— Contributions to defined contribution — — 5 & ft % 5 &1 ¢ 7
plan* 31 34
Total employee benefits expenses EERMNMAZRE 1,536 1,625
*  There was no forfeited contribution in respect of the defined * Eé\,?,, FRZZF-NF+ZA=+—HLER
contribution plan available at 31 December 2020 and 2019 FERRETE 2 B8 R AEEERREK -
to reduce future contributions. There was no outstanding RZEZEFR-ZF-NAFTZA=+—HAE
contribution to the plan at 31 December 2020 and 2019. 8 AR A % w5t Bl 2 K e
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in
the consolidated financial statements since the Group has no
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Reconciliation between income tax and the product of the

Group’s loss before tax at applicable tax rate is set out below:

Loss before tax

Notional tax on loss before tax,
calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax
rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Income tax

B 75t A1 /&5 18

BRUATEER . 2 ERIAR
BABMNBFHY E16.5%
ZZ2—NF 16.5%) 5 H

BTSN EMFE R 2
MG E

AERRBEBRNRBEE

PIT 15 Bt

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZRERAR

REWEFEEAR - BRAE B E GG B
B Ay EESA M ERRATREENGEHR

B e

FrEpEREEZERM AT ZBRBATBIEL

HERWT

2020
=

HK$°000
FTER

(4,166)

(687)

576
111

2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
FEL

(35,361)

(5,835)

2,361
3,474



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-T-_TF+_A=1+—HLLFE

Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances and contribution
Fees benefits in kind plan Total

A= 1] FE# %

une REWN G sHEHR as
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TR Tz TERT TER

-

F w~A-"Aﬂn,ua.aRé,,.on;‘?r§o¢i,
& I .7.7.&',




For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019
—E-hF
Salaries, Contributions
allowances and to defined
Fees benefits in kind  contribution plan Total
= FE R
ik REYH = st &I & &t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT TET FAT
Executive Directors: HTES
Chau Wai Hing® A & #o — 69 3 72
Wu Ming Gai HhE — 144 7 151
Chan Carman Wing Yan B K AR — 204 11 215
Non-executive directors FHTES
William Keith Jacobsen ERH 144 — — 144
Chen Albert PR T 18 180 — — 180
Wong Chung Yan Sammy =R 168 — — 168
Independent non-executive BIEHTEE
directors
Chan Man Yi R 81 2 120 — — 120
Leung Yin Ting R 120 — — 120
Jiang Qian L 120 — = 120
852 417 21 1,290
®  Chau Wai Hing resigned as a executive Director on 18 O FEARER-ZZF-AF-_ATN\BBRENTE
February 2019. = o
Note:  There was no arrangement under which a director Bat: FRYEERESHEXRZHRREM
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the B < &9 22 BE ©
year.
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The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include 4 (2019: four)
Directors whose emoluments were disclosed above.
The emoluments of the remaining one (2019: one)
individual(s) and four Directors above-mentioned during
the year are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and e FEUREDAE
benefits in kind

Contributions to defined 5 SR ET S R
contribution plan

Discretionary bonus B 15 TEAL

During the year, there was no discretionary cash bonus
paid or payables to the Directors and approximately
HK$13,000 paid to one of the five highest paid individuals
(2019: HK$13,000).

The emoluments of the one (2019: one) individual with
highest emoluments is within the following band:

Nil-HK$1,000,000 = %£1,000,0007% 7T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
 E_F_TF+-_A=T—HLEFE

FAXREBRLARSFALTEREAR(Z
T-NF AREF EMCELXH
B-FAESBK-—R(ZE-NAF: —R)AL

REmmEEEHOMeET :
2020 2019
—EC-EF —T—hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T T
937 867
29 27
13 13
979 907

RER  YEENRENTESORERS
A MEN—NUAERSEFATHORER
2EAL#) 313,000/ 7T (ZF — L4 :13,000
AIT) °

—H2(ZE-NF: —R)RSHFATOHH
BRIATHE :

2020 2019
ZBEZE2F —ZE-hF
Number of Number of
individual individual
A" A B

1 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

Senior management represents the executive Directors. SREEBIEATESE -RNAFERE
The emoluments paid or payable to senior management EBRAEREEBAOFMMOT :

during the year are as follows:

2020 2019
—F-FF —FT-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHBT
Directors’ fees EEHe
Salaries, allowances and & EMREYEARN
benefits in kind 403 417
Contributions to defined FE SR Gt S 3K
contribution plan 21 21
424 438
The emoluments paid or payable to the two (2019: three) ENXENRE(ZE—NF : =R)ahE
members of senior management were within the band I [E K B R F B9 1 FZE %£1,000,000/8 7T 2
from nil to HK$1,000,000. CETR
Save as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial RS TERERMEIGHTEEEI RER
statements, no significant transaction, arrangement and KFRNEAER  BEFEALRAELH
contract in relation to the Group’s business to which Hp—% - BARAEERES=NEB AR
the Company was a party and in which a director of (BT EEEESHENE AR AEH
the Company and the director's connected party had a XBLERARS  RHEREH -

material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZRERAR



The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Loss for the purposes of basic ERERNEBEGTES
loss per share B B #) & 18
Issued ordinary shares at REFEZETHE AR

the beginning of year
Effect of rights issue (note 31(2))

Weighted average number of ordinary & % £ 7K 518 5+ & &b f F £Y
shares for the purpose of calculating T 3E MR A N E 15 &

basic loss per share

For the calculation of diluted loss per share, no adjustment
has been made to the basic loss per share amount presented
for the years ended 31 December 2020 as there were no
potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during the years
ended 31 December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the weighted average
number of ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating
basis loss per share has been adjusted to take into effect of
the rights issue as set out in note 31(2) to the consolidated
financial statements as if it had been effective on 1 January
2019.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

% B & 2 (K7 :£31(2)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BT _EFTA=T—BHLEFE

ARRBEBEABEERERNBERNUTEEG

s

2020 2019
—E-ZF —T-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FH&IT
(4,166) (35,361)
2020 2019
—E-TF —ZT-NF
’000 '000

F B’ F A&
359,727 119,909

— 59,633

359,727 179,542
HE TEFTZA=+—HIEFE &

th%%%ﬁﬁa~mv1ﬂﬁ*%ﬁm%
BELTARETE FIUABE_Z2-_Z4+_-8
S+-HLFEEYEHIBNERENEESE
fEH S o

HE-_Z—NWE+-_A=+—BLEE ERE
ANEBFTERMAM T BROMETAHREED
AR - AEREERE B IR R W 5E31(2)Fr S ) 7
ROEE BOREEBE T —NF—H—BEH
BRER o

EEETEAMBE_ZT_TFR_T—NF
TZAZ+ - HALFERNEFAMERS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

Cost DN
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, R=ZF-NF—A—B8"
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 —Z—AF+-A=+—H "

T F-—A—-HK
—E-TF+-A=+—H

Accumulated depreciation R E

At 1 January 2019 R-ZZE—-NE—A—H

Provided for the year FAEBE

At 31 December 2019 and RZBE-NAFE+ZA=+—8BRK
1 January 2020 —E-TF—-HF—H

Provided for the year FAEE

At 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZF+=-A=+—H

Carrying amount REE

At 31 December 2020 RZBE-_ZF+_A=+—H

At 31 December 2019 RZBE-NF+ZA=+—H

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZRERAR

Office
equipment
WAERE

HK$'000

FTAT

537

518

527

533

10

Furniture and
fixtures
BRMREE
HK$’000
THET

572

572

572

572

Total

A4t

HK$'000

THT

1,109

1,090

1,099

1,105

10



For the year ended 31 December 2020
 E_F_TF+-_A=T—HLEFE

At 1 January 2019
Additions
Depreciation

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020

Depreciation

At 31 December 2020

Leased

properties

HEWHE

HK$’000

TH&T

RZZEE—hF—H—H 266

RE 556

e (347)
RZZE—hAEF+=ZA=+—HBK

—ET-TF—HF—H 475

e (278)

R-ZB-ZEF+=-H=+—H 197

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$208,000 (2019:
HK$490,000) are recognised with related right-of-use
assets of approximately HK$197,000 as at 31 December
2020. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not
be used as security for borrowing purposes.

RZEBE-_ZF+_A=+—H E®RRIEE
B8 1&#7208,0007% 7T (= F — /L :490,000/8
70) RABRI RO A HE A E 49197,0008 7T © FR
HEAARENHREEETNERERN - A
EMEAMNEMNEMEZE -HEEETS
RN ERER o

2020 2019
—BRCEH —E-hEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT T3 T

Depreciation expenses on FREEENITEEZR
right-of-use assets 278 347

Interest expense on lease liabilities HEABENAEXZH

(included in finance cost) (Bt ABERKA) 18 14

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note
35(c).

For both years, the Group leases an office for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term
of 2 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

HER MDA ENFAE S SN
35(c) °

RMER AEBEHE-RBHIEARE
- HEARAHEYMERT L - % E R
HEERER - BEE BB PRGN RIEME - &
SEEFTHEMRMFHETTRENHARE
B RAGHERLEES ORI
HR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

Within one year —F R
In the second to fifth years, FE_EZERF
inclusive (EEMERELEA)

Less: Future finance charges o KRR EE A

Present value of lease HEETERE
obligations

Less: Amount due for settlement & : 121& A R 2 i &9
within 12 months (shown under ENZKE(ERE A G

current liabilities) T#ER)

Amount due for settlement after  121# A 12 2| # &Y f& {~F 2 0E

12 months

All finance lease payables are denominated in HK$.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the
cash generating unit (“CGU”) that is expected to benefit from
that business combination. Before recognition of impairment
losses, the carrying amount of goodwill amounting to
HK$38,000 had been allocated to Studio V Limited (“Studio
V"), a subsidiary of the Company, which is considered to be a

single CGU.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the goodwill

attributable to Studio V was fully impaired.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZRERAR

Present value of

Minimum lease minimum
payments lease payments
BEEERE REHAERERE
2020 2019 2020 2019

—E-RF —TNF —E-FF T NF

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000

FTHET FBET FET FB T
213 300 208 282
— 213 — 208
213 513 208 490
(5) (23) N/A N/A
208 490 208 490

(208) (282)
— 208

ERMEEERNRELAETAE -

E_E—RF+-_A=Z=+—HLEFER
XA RENEEERER SR FES
=R ZEEAHNREELET(REEL
Bl - EHRAREEEN BENEESHE
38,0007 7T E & 5 i T A~ A 7] if & A 7]Studio V
Limited ([Studio V) * E R AE—ReEHE
=

T
\ E)I B> B

REBEEZZ—tE+-A=Z+—-—BILFEE"
Studio V(59 & 2 2R E -



Consideration receivables (note a) FE U ME (47 iFa)

Deposits paid for investments (note b) M E T MRS (4 iFb)
Other deposits HEfiz &

Prepayments iﬁ 3R 1E

o AR ERANHES

Less: non-current portion of consideration
receivables

Current portion B HA &6 5

Notes:

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
disposed the consideration receivables and the unlisted
convertible bonds CB2 as defined in note 23(b) in exchange
for LN2 as defined in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements, resulting in a gain on deemed disposal of such
arrangement by approximately HK$329,000 recognised in profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2020. Further detail is set
out in note 35(a)(i) to the consolidated financial statements.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company

disposed the deposit paid for investment as earnest money

amounted to HK$10,000,000 paid by the Group for the proposed
investments of HK$10,000,000 in exchange for the LN4 as
defined in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements,
resulting a gain on deemed disposal of such arrangement by

HK$1,378,000 recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31

December 2020. Further detail is set out in note 35(a)(ii) to the

consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
disposed the deposit paid for investment as earnest money
amounted to HK$5,500,000 paid by the Group for the proposed
investments and LN1 as defined in note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements in exchange for 1,120,000 shares of
Winchester Holding Group, a company listed in the United States
as detailed in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements,
resulting in a loss on deemed disposal of such arrangement by
approximately HK$3,615,000 recognised in profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, additional provision
for impairment of approximately HK$1,267,000 (2019:
HK$518,000) and HK$325,000 (2019: HK$20,000) were made
for 12m ECL on the balances of deposits and other receivables,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-Z-_THF+-_A=1+—HILFE
2020 2019
—s-%s —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
— 8,980
— 14,631
54 53
579 210
633 23,874

— (3,000)
633 20,874

Hrat -

(a)

(b)

RBE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—BLEFE 42
Bl H & T B U B AN BT 7 23(b)FT E KO JE £ T A
HRESFAEIRES2  URBREE M EREM T
2HFIERMNEREE2 - Lriﬁm@zi_z_iﬁi
TZA=T—BLEEFEREBERTRRBRELEZ
ﬁﬁtﬁﬁ?‘imu&ﬁﬁ,ﬁszgooo,ﬁn B
&R & B 7% 4R 2% BT 5E35(a) (i) ©

REBE-ZEZ-_ZTF+-_A=+—BILEE &
NRIHETAREINNRS(EAAER AE
H B A HY S £10,000,00058 T A0 L3R &
10,000,0007% 7T ) + AHRER AR & BF 75 3R 2% fd sk 22
TEMEREZRL BHREBEE_T_TF+=A
=t+—HALEFEER %amqﬂﬁﬁw%ﬁf’ﬁdj%;%ﬂ#ﬁﬁ
B A KU 251,378,0000 7T © # — 2 EF 1E H I R AR
& B 75 3R 2% BT 5 35(a) (i) ©

REBEE-_ZT-_TEF+_A=1+—RHLEE XA
RAIHETHRAEMBERRMERLFEENALES
iz (ERAASEAREREMIMANEES
5,500,000 70) M1 B 5 Z &1 - LA E1,120,000 4%
Winchester Holding Groupf% {3 (32 2 7l %.L

M(FRGEMBMANE23)) EHRREZE
—TF+-A=1+—HLEFER %amEPﬁ’éwﬁf’E
&z % HE 2 518 493,615,000 7T ©

REBEE-_T-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLEFE 5
a-dzfixzﬁm‘iu& KIE AR R 1218 A TR RS EEETE
B INET 1R 491,267,000% ;T (=T — L4 : 518,000
7 7T ) & 325,000 7t (== — L4 : 20,0007 7T)
B -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

Issuer Date

BA A&

Shenzhen Dalong Packaging 31 December 2020
Machinery Equipment
Company Limited* ("LN1") 31 December 2019

ngmmwaymu) ZE-NE+ZA=T+-H

WL@@ ERMEEER
A((EXEE1])
(_;*hﬁ TEA

BHRZER4))

Shenzhen Huaqin Agriculture 31 December 2020
Technology Company
Limited* (“LN2") 31 December 2019

RELEERBRBERAF =
(TExEH2))

Shenzhen Qianhai Earl Lan 31 December 2020

Official Business Aviation —ZE-Z&+-f=+—H

Services Limited* (‘LN3") 31 December 2019
(2019: defined as “LN6") 2
RIFBERBABME
BERAR([EREES])
(_T NE:EEH
ERZE6])

Yun Kang Data Technology 31 December 2020
(Shanghai) Company
Limited* (“LN4")

%Eﬁﬂﬂ&(}ﬂﬁ@

A(ERFE])

31 December 2019

Shenzhen Da Long General 31 December 2020
Packaging Machinery
Company Limited* ("LN5") 31 December 2019
(2019: defined as “LN5")
RIEEBRDREN
ARAR(TEHRES])
(Z%- n¢ TEA

[ERFES])

Zhongda International 31 December 2020

Holdings Limited

(2019: defined as “LN1”, 31 December 2019

“LN2”, and “LN3") -hWE+=A=1+-8
RABBERER A

(ZZ-nF: EEA

[EREE1][ER

ZE2RIEFZERS])

Total 31 December 2020

ok “E-ZE+-R=+-H

31 December 2019

-AE+=-R=1-H

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZRERAR

ZEZZETZR=1-H

“E-ZE+-R=+-H
-NE+=-A=+-H

~AE+=B=+-7

“E-ZE+-R=+-H
-NE+=RA=1+-8

SP-REt=f=1-7
~AE+=B=+-7

“E-ZE+-RA=+-H

Subscription
amount

AELE
HK$'000
THEL

24,000

27,000

33,000

33,000

20,000

24,000

24,000

104,000

81,000

Interest
receivables

WA S
HK$'000
TER

2,716

8

1,899

244

118

5,122

2,716

7,152

5,676

Impairment loss
recognised during
the year
REEER
e

REBR
HK$'000

TEL

2,251

1,181

220

2,733

423

369

6,358

994

11,931

2,598

Carrying amount

REE
HK$'000
TERL

24,118

26,793

31,743

32,821

19,749

20,166

24,118

98,451

81,057

Interest income
recognised during
the year
REFERER
RS HA
HK$'000

TEL

2,341

2,400

1,655

244

118

2,406

2,400

833

6,533

5,877



(i)

(if)

(iiif)

On 14 November 2018, the Group had subscribed HK$
denominated loan note (the “LN1”) of principal value of
HK$24,000,000 issued by an independent third party
which is private entity established in the PRC, Shenzhen
Dalong Packaging Machinery Equipment Company
Limited*, which is principally engaged in providing
integrated R&D, design, sales and after-sales service in
packaging equipment, maturity of three years from dates
of issue. LN1 bears fixed interest at 10% per annum and
is measured at amortised cost.

On 30 December 2020, the Group had subscribed HK$
denominated loan note (the “LNZ2”) of principal value of
HK$27,000,000 issued by an independent third party
which is private entity established in the PRC, Shenzhen
Huaqin Agriculture Technology Company Limited*, which
is principally engaged in technological development
of agricultural products and biological products, with
maturity of three years from dates of issue. LN2 bears
fixed interest at 8.5% per annul and is measured at
amortised cost.

On 8 November 2019, the Group had subscribed HK$
denominated loan note (the “LN3”) of principal value of
HK$33,000,000 issued by an independent third party
which is private entity established in the PRC, Shenzhen
Qianhai Earl Lan Official Business Aviation Services
Limited*, which is principally engaged in aircraft leasing,
with maturity of two years from dates of issue. LN3
bears fixed interest at 5% per annul and is measured at
amortised cost.

On 16 November 2020, the Group had subscribed HK$
denominated loan note (the “LN4”) of principal value of
HK$20,000,000 issued by an independent third party
which is private entity established in the PRC, Yun Kang
Data Technology (Shanghai) Company Limited*, which
is principally engaged in applying deep learning and
artificial intelligence to analyse the big data for application
and provide clinical diagnosis, with maturity of three years
from dates of issue. LN4 bears fixed interest at 6% per
annul and is measured at amortised cost.

On 14 November 2018, the Group had subscribed HK$
denominated loan note (the “LN5”) of principal value of
HK$24,000,000 issued by an independent third party
which is private entity established in the PRC, Shenzhen
Da Long General Packaging Machinery Company
Limited*, which is principally engaged in developing and
designing mechanical equipment, maturity of three years
from date of issue. LN5 bears fixed interest at 10% per
annum and is measured at amortised cost.

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
 E_F_TF+-_A=T—HLEFE

RZZ—N\F+—A+HB  ASEERE
BLTEXRER(ERZE1]) A2 BEA
24,000,000/ 7T + B — & A5 F B K 32 8 AL
ABEBNBIE=ZHCFIERERME
HEERAR  TENEREDEZBOERSE
WEE - R HEREBRRE) BT ORE
THERFSFEH - ERZEBIRETEFF
E10%:T EF B RIZEHK AT E -

WN-E-FTF+-A=+H AEEDRE
BLTERERE(ERZRK2]) e EBEA
27,000,0007% 7T+ B3 — ] & 7 AR B A 37 /9 Fl
AEBNBYE=FCRINENRERESR
RAR  EEREFEREEMMEME KR
FIEE) BT - RBITHERESEEIE - BEX
= 2 21% [E 7F F F K 8.5%t H F| B K 1% £k 8
KA &£ °

R—ZZE—NhFE+—ANB AEEERHE
BLTERER(BERZEKI])  AcEBEA
33,000,000/ 7T * M — [ A R HF B A 32 B AL
EERENBYFE=FOFRIESERABEAE
MERBEERAR  FEREREBE) %
7 RETBHE25RH - ERXEREIIRE
EFFRE%t HEF BRI KA E -

RZZ=_ZTF+—A+~ 8 A£EERE
BTERERE((BERZE4])  AeEBEA
20,000,000/8 7T + B — & A K F B A 32 5 AL
AEBHNBYE=F(ZRELERH(LE)
BRAR  EEREBFESERAIE &
R D M A B LA D0 GA FE A I 4R ER R 2
BT)EAT  REE/TRHARIERH - BRE
417 B TE F 5 K6%aT & 7| B iz # 85 pk A

HE o

RZZF-NF+—-A+HA  AEEERE
BLTERER(TERRERS])  A2EEA
24,000,000 7T+ E — Al 4 70 A B B 37 &Y 7L
ABEBNBYE = (FRYzREREEHK
MERRE  TERETHEREGHRERK
BT RBEITHHEAIFIY - BRE
B5R E TE F M K 10%+ B F B 5% 3% 8 5K
KEtE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-TF+_A=1+—HIEFE

2020
—E-EF
HK$°000
FHxT

104,000
7,152
(12,701)

2020
—E-FF
HK$’000
TER

5,619
(4,849)
11,931

12,701

134 COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZERAERAT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B wRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-T-_TF+_A=1+—HLLFE

2020
=
HK$’000
TER

46,944

2020
—E-%HF
HK$’000
FHET




For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

Notes: (Continued) B (&)
(a) Trading securities (Continued) (a) XE&EH (&)
At the end of reporting period, details of the Group’s major listed RBEBHR  AERFE LT ESEFFNFEBD
equity securities are as follows: T
Accumulated
fair value gains/
(losses) on
investment
recognised in
the consolidated
Proportion Net assets financial
As at of investee’s attributable to statement
Stock name 31 December capital owned Cost Market value  the investment  during the year
REAEERR
R+=A EERERE X N REREE RIADAE
e Er=F AR ERLLH B A {8 BEEFE W/ (F8)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET THT FTHET THET
Hong Kong
'R
On Real International Holdings Limited 20%0 4.53% 11,100 2,223 2,165 (8,878)
—Z2-%
ZIRBIRERARA R ﬁg 6.79% 11,100 5,421 4,075 (5,679)
—F—
Classified Group (Holdings) Limited 202$0 3.89% 3,679 746 2,230 (2,932)
—E-F
Classified Group (Holdings) Limited %gg 4.59% 4,738 1,556 3,672 (3,182)
—F—
Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited 2020 — — — — —
=k
EXBERREEBERAA ﬁg 0.31% 228 147 276 (81)
—Z—
China Creative Digital Entertainment Limited 202¢0 0.49% 178 72 (3,021) (106)
—Z2-%
FEESHRBREGR A A an 0.49% 178 110 119 (68)
—T—
Evershine Group Holdings Limited ZOZEO 0.08% 66 21 6 (45)
—E-F
KREBERERAR 2)22 0.10% 66 52 113 (14)
- -
Tencent Holdings Limited 20%0 0.00%* 1,012 1,354 161 342
—E=%
BAERARAR 2019 — — — — —
—ZT-NF
Alibaba Group Holding Limited 202¢0 0.00%* 1,040 1,047 235 6
—Z2-%
MEBESEZRERAA 2019 — — — — —
—E-hE
The People’s Insurance Company (Group) of 2020 0.00%* 550 423 663 (127)
China Limited —T-TH
FREARRBEERHAERA A 2019 — — — — —
—Z-NF
United States
%M
Winchester Holding Group 202@0 1.15% 25,334 41,059 244 20,093
—E-F
Winchester Holding Group 2019 — — — — —
—TNF
* less than 0.01% * K 720.01%

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZRERAR



Notes: (Continued)

(a) Trading securities (Continued)
Dividends of approximately HK$30,000 was recognised in
consolidated profit or loss during the year while no dividend
income received during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Unless otherwise specified, all of the above investments are
directly held by the Company.

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

On Real International Holdings Limited, incorporated in
Cayman lIslands, is principally engaged in the designing,
manufacturing and selling of two-way radio and baby
monitors on original design manufacturing basis.

Classified Group (Holdings) Limited, incorporated in Cayman
Islands, is principally engaged in restaurant operations in
Hong Kong.

Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited, incorporated in
Cayman Islands, is principally engaged in sales of biometrics
identification devices and other devices and accessories and
provision of auxiliary and other services.

China Creative Digital Entertainment Limited, incorporated
in Bermuda, is principally engaged in cultural and
entertainment business in China.

Evershine Group Holdings Limited, incorporated in Hong
Kong, is principally engaged in the construction, contracting
works, construction materials trade, property leasing,
furniture business, cemetery business, money lending
business and mobile application business.

Tencent Holdings Limited, incorporated in Cayman Islands,
is principally engaged in the provision of Value-added
Service (“VAS”), FinTech and Business Services and
Online Advertising services. Net dividend (after expenses)
approximately HK$1,600 was received for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil).

(vii) Alibaba Group Holding Limited, incorporated in Cayman

Islands, provides the technology infrastructure and
marketing reach to help merchants, brands and other
businesses to leverage the power of new technology to
engage with their users and customers and operate in a
more efficient way.

(viii) The People’s Insurance Company (Group) of China

Limited, incorporated in China, mainly provide integrated
financial products and services and is engaged in property
and casualty insurance, life and health insurance, asset
management and other businesses.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BHE_Z-_ZHE+-_A=+—HILFE

Hrat - (%)

(a) XBEF (H)

REERER G BT BRI E 430,000 T * MK
%i_2*h¢+_ﬂ:+ SRR F &l

ERBREHA -

BEZEER ARREEKELIMERE -

(i)

(iii) &

(iv)

(viii TEEBEEZRERAAF RHES

Vi) FBEARRBEBERGERRAAF -

ZRBERERERRA  RH2EHSEMAK
o ERWUEREG CAEER HERAIREE
ENHERENMBZEIER -

Classified Group (Holdings) Limited * /A f £
HEAMEKY  FERBEERFERLKE -

ZEEMBRERABERARF RASESHE
ﬁ&i'I£%$%E$%%%ﬁ?“ﬁ&
H o R A B S - DA R BR A B M AN E b AR
% o

TEAEHBREBERAR  NEREZM
W4'I2F¢IQ$YM&ﬁ%¥%

Eet

o

R%%E@%ﬁ@@ﬁ’%%%iﬁﬁﬁ'
TERFRE BEEX BEMRH  WEH
B GRER REER EREBLBIE
B -

EaiERERA REASHESFMKL -

Ixﬁ$kﬁW@mﬁﬂwwD ﬁﬂﬂ&
REERB LG EESRSE - KEBE—
—EFEF A=+ Eﬁithu@%@D
BB 12) 491,600 T (Z T —LF : ) °

BB
M - REF - @R E M SR E S
EMEmAREHETE - & H A E B T
MhE HEEREMEFES  TUESX
HAHRNEE -

B R
iy TEREKEAERERMRS - I
NREMERBREL AFRBREL BEEE
BUAREMER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
ZFF+A=+T—HILFE

BHEZ

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Trading securities (Continued)

(ix) Winchester Holding Group, incorporated in the United
States, is organized for the purpose of property acquisitions.
Initial operations have included organization and
incorporation, target market identification, marketing plans,
capital formation and property acquisitions and vehicle
exclusive seller.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s trading securities
of carrying amount of approximately HK$2,969,000 (2019:
HK$1,715,000) were pledged to a securities broker to secure
margin loan borrowed by the Group.

Convertible bonds designated at financial assets at FVTPL

At the end of reporting period, details of major unlisted
convertible bonds designated at financial assets at FVTPL
disclosed pursuant to the Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules are as
follows:

Place of

Name of investee Incorporation

As at
31 December

Hrat - (%)

(a)

(b)

REES ()

(ix) Winchester Holding Group#? 3= Bl 7t fift B 32
REBVEMAEAR NP EFESRERNE
feksz - BIEmS#EA - E#HETE - EAREK
ERMERERTEZER °

RZB_ZBF+_HA=+—H FAEEREEY
2,969,000/ 7T (= F — /14 : 1,715,000/ L) 2 R
SEFERMTFESFLL  URBEAEEEAZ

% AN 1S E
BLER -

EEARAAERBESERIRZSREENTE
BmES

RBEHR  T2MEERAALBERNBERERIIER
ZEMEEMIF LT AIBRESNFBERE(LT
BMADENEREMT

Accumulated

Rt+t=AH
BRREARDAE = 8 B 32 it B ET =
Profit Gain Finance Limited (“CB1”) Hong Kong 2020
BREBBEERAF e 2019
(TR A 251])
HF Financial Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 2020
Limited (“CB2")
EReRER(FEB)ERAA 00 2019
([rEBrEH2])

All the above investments are directly held by the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020,

the Company

fair value

losses on

investment

recognised

in the

Interest  consolidated

income financial

recognised statements

during the during the
Cost year year Fair value

RAFER

REEHH

REAEFER BERABRZ

BRZ REZRG
B AR FE®A DREEBE DRfE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FHT FAET
= 1,534 = _
— 1,571 — —
19,700 1,576 (2,146) 19,520

AABEEFALIMERE -

RBEE=ZZT_=-F

FH-A=+—AEEE A2

disposed the consideration receivables as defined in note 21(a)
and the unlisted convertible bonds CB2 to exchange for LN2 as
defined in note 22, resulting in a gain on deemed disposal of such
arrangement by approximately HK$329,000 recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZRERAR

BHE T K EE21(a)PTE Z W B KRB IE LA
BHEFATERES2 - U2 rEE N
ENER2 - EHRNBE_T_ZTF+_A=+—
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
 E_F_TF+-_A=T—HLEFE

2020 2019
— —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Unlisted equity investments designated & EZ A LEREM2HE K S
at financial assets at FVTOCI IRz eMEBEEMIELEMRERE 30,600 29,400

On 7 December 2018, the Group subscribed 20% equity
interest of an Anguilla incorporated private equity, Perfect
Path, through its 45% owned associate, effectively owns as
to 9% equity interest of a gold mining project in Thailand, at
a consideration of HK$18,500,000. As of 31 December 2020,
the fair value of the equity investment was approximately
HK$30,600,000 (2019: HK$29,400,000).

Despite the Group holds 20% of the voting power in Perfect
Path, however, under contractual arrangements, the other
shareholders control the composition of the board of directors
and have control over Perfect Path. The directors of the
Company consider that the Group does not have significant
influence over Perfect Path, and it is therefore the unlisted
equity investments are designated at financial assets at
FVTOCI.

RZZE—NF+-_AtH AEEEBEES
A5%ERS 2B E R ERBERESBERAKRE
B 9%H% # ) LA X {8 18,500,000/8 T R BN — B R
%2 == 5F 5K 37 B L & E B8Perfect Pathf920%
e -BE—T-_TF+_A=+—80  BEXR
& WA S {E %) £30,600,0008 T (— T — N 4F
29,400,000 7T ) °

& B RN £ F 35 BPerfect Patht20%%k R # + A
mRIEBEEHNLTH  HMBREZEFHEZESMAE
4K - Y #E#Perfect Path » A A A1 E E R A A
5% B #fPerfect Pathit EE KT 2 ) - Bt IE k£
MREREREAEARBEREMEE KRR
MEMEE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

Income approach were used for valuation of the above equity
interests. Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited ("Ravia")
is an independent firm of professional valuer appointed by the
Company to carry out the valuations of the Group’s unlisted
equity investments designated at financial assets at FVTOCI.
The inputs into the valuation models as at 31 December 2020

were as follows:

Perfect Path
Perfect Path

Subscription date

R H

Total number of shares held

P 5 A% 1 48 28

Subscription price

REE

Proportion of investee’s capital owned
WRERBHEBENEARLE

Dividend income received during the year

REERNDWEH BB URA

Net assets attributable to the investment (Note)

RERGEEFE(HZ)

Fair value gain/(loss) recognised during the year

REFEARANDAERR,(EE)
Expected dividend yield

T8 HA AR B A 2

Discount rate

BRI X

Valuation methodology

HERE

Fair value performed by:

AREFEEE

Notes: Figures were based on the management accounts as at 31

December 2020 provided by the investees.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZRERAR

ERW KRG g - In @IRIKFEZE A
RAR([HE NDAEARARNEZERAEEEERR
AREREMEERAIIKZEMEENIELD
REREETHENBLEXRGEMT R _-F
“EREF A=+ BEEEREZBANDT :

31 December 2020
—®-®F5t=-A=+-H

7 December 2018
—E-NF+=ZAtH
200,000

200,000
HK$18,500,000
18,500,000/ 7T
20.00%

20.00%

HK$32,072,000
32,072,0007% 7T
HK$1,200,000
1,200,000/ 7T

12.00%
12.00%
Income Model
K AR A
Ravia

CoyE |
Inm &

Hret : BEEARBRREARARMUN T _ZTF+ 4

=+t—aERERA -



Amounts due from securities brokers represent deposits
placed with securities brokers for the trading of listed
investments which are unsecured, bearing interest at a range
between 0% to 0.001% (2019: 0% to 0.001%) per annum and
repayable on demand. No ageing analysis is disclosed in
respect of amounts due from securities brokers. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, an ageing analysis does not
give additional value in view of the Group’s business nature.

Amounts due to securities brokers represent credit facility
provided by securities brokers, bearing interest at 10.25%
(2019: 8% to 10.375%) per annum and repayable on demand.
No ageing analysis is disclosed in respect of amounts due
to securities brokers. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, an ageing analysis does not give additional value
in view of the Group’s business nature.

Other payables and accruals
Unclaimed dividend payables

On 4 June 2018, the Group had obtained an unsecured and
unguaranteed loan at the rate of 8% per annum with principal
amount of HK$30,000,000 from its substantial shareholder,
namely Mr. Chen Chien Yeh (the “Shareholder’s Loan”).
The effective interest rate applied was 7.7% per annum and
the Shareholder’s Loan was mature on 6 October 2019 and
settled in full in 2019.

Hit Rt E R
1) AR 4B B A 5 AR S

For the year ended 31 December 2020
 E_F_TF+-_A=T—HLEFE

RRBSFELFBAREBES R CRR G LTHREM
FHRERBFELNER  EREERT  R0%E
0.001% (—ZF — L : 0%=0.001%) &Y F & =& 5t
BME - WAL ERERERE - WEREKES
REFEREREDT - ARAREZAR A
RAEENEBLE Rk DML EBEIMEE -

ENEFEEREAESCLRENEERE -
1#10.25% (= Z — NLF : 8%Z=10.375%) ) & F
KT EF B - WEREKBEREER - WEREN
BHEKETERBREDNT - NQARESERA
FERASEMERMED @ Rk ML EFEINME
& o

2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FTAT
728 1,343

4 4

732 1,347

RZZE—NFANA  AEEERHEETERRE
BeR 722 2 ST AE 9% F FI R 8% 15 A 4 %8 430,000,000
BITHEREREEERER(REER]) - BE
NEBRFERNEEBT7%  ZBBRREFNR_Z—AN
E+ARNBIBIR - L ERHET o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had outstanding five
promissory notes to four individuals who are independent
to the Group with an aggregated principal value of
HK$19,920,000. These promissory notes bear interest at
rates ranging from 6.5% to 8% per annum and are due for
repayments ranging from 13th months to 52th months (2019:
24th months to 64 months) at the end of reporting period.

On initial recognition, the fair value of promissory notes
issued by the Company were determined based on the
present value of the contractual stream of future cash flows
discounted at rates ranging from 5.5% to 6.69% per annum.
The discount rates are determined with reference to the yield
rate with credit rating and duration similar to the promissory
notes.

The details of the promissory notes for the year are set out
below:

At 1 January R—H—H
Imputed interest charged & & W EL A A B
Redemption during the year RAFERNED

RAFEE AN FE

Interest paid during the year

At 31 December
Less: Amount due within one year

R+t-—_A=+—H

classified as current liabilities FaE

R —FRABHANE R

R-ZE-_ZTFE+-_A=+—H AQaHEBREK
FEEBNANZETORBINAEBAMEA -
BN % 18 /519,920,00058 T ° % S &N ZiR
6.5%ZE8%MFFI KT EF B - WKL EIRAE
SE13EAEER@AA(ZE—NE « $24EA
Z64fE A ) B HEE -

B TERE - ARRMEITHANENRRETD
RHE & #) R 2RI &7 PA5.5%ZE6.69%F F R 47 57
FIRHRERE - TRXD2EEEFRARTH
BRI AL B e RORFEE o

RERNBBEANENFBHINET :

Amount due over one year classified as R —F RN EEE 2B AEIFERD

non-current liabilities A&

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$276,955,000 (2019:
HK$276,282,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
these tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZRERAR

2020 2019
—E-FF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FTAT
20,257 20,754
1,379 1,317
— (300)
(1,492) (1,514)
20,144 20,257
BRI
(224) (337)
19,920 19,920

RBEERAR AEBRAPABEEBFED
276,955,000 % 7T (= T — fL F : 276,282,000 %
7C) AR B R SR A o p 70 R SRR B R B9 N ]
BAME AR ELBRBEBEERIBECHAEE -
AERBNREERATAER ML -



Authorised:

Ordinary share of HK$1 each at
1 January 2019

Capital reorganisation (note 1)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at
31 December 2019, 1 January 2020
and 31 December 2020

Issued and fully paid:

Ordinary shares of HK$1 each at
1 January 2019

Capital reorganisation (note 1)

Rights issue (note 2)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at
31 December 2019, 1 January 2020

B

R=F-NE—A-BEREE
178 72 ¢ % AR

BN B 48 (A7 1)

BRREEO0.1E It 1 & & Ik

BERTRAER

W-E-nF-A-ASRAE
18T R E R

ARAE 48 (f7#1)

A& (Hrat2)

and 31 December 2020 —ZE_EF+_-_HA=+—H
Hﬁﬁ{ 0. 1/E7EE’]jt %
Notes: s
1 The Company has been de-registered in the Cayman Islands and 1

duly continued in Bermuda as an exempted company under the

laws of Bermuda and the change of domicile became effective on
2 April 2019 (Hong Kong time) (the “Change of Domicile”). Details
of the Change of Domicile were set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 23 January 2019, 25 January 2019 and
4 April 2019 and the circular of the Company dated 4 February
2019.

On 23 January 2019, the Company announced to implement the
capital reorganisation after the change of domicile becoming
effective as follows:

(i) Reduction of Share Premium — the entire amount standing
to the credit of the share premium account of the Company
was reduced to nil and the credit arising from such
reduction was transferred to an existing account of the
Company designated as the contributed surplus account
of the Company. Thereafter, the credit of the contributed
surplus account of the Company was applied in full towards
offsetting the entire amount of the accumulated losses of
the Company as permitted under the New Bye-laws and the
Companies Act.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BT _EFTA=T—BHLEFE

Number of shares Amount
B3 & B &8
HK$’000
FHT
1,000,000,000 1,000,000
9,000,000,000 —
10,000,000,000 1,000,000
119,908,950 119,909
— (107,918)
239,817,900 23,982
359,726,850 35,973
ARFERFASHETHE YREBEEEREER

é%éﬁﬁ%%@?ﬁﬁf&'&ﬁﬁm%ﬁ
ER-E-—NAENA-_A(TEBEMDAERME
ﬁm%“ﬁn°ﬁﬁm%@ HIBEE D RIER A
AEIBEAZT—NF—A=+=B -ZZ—Ah
E—H-+RBABR-_E—HAENMANBZAMHK
IWEARBBAE-_ST—AF_ANBZEBX -

ARARR=_F—NF—
o EE BT AR TR

A-+=H E 15 7 = i
TRASEHE

(i) BB (E — AR B 4 B R 2 2 8B
RERHBET YEKBHERAEEZ
ERBREEERLAAREHBBEZIAR
ARERP - B REFARRRREE
HOARTERRAREZERSBEANE
BHEARAMNE MRS BESHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BHEZ

FoEE+RA=+HLFE

Notes:

1

(Continued)

(ii) Capital Reduction — the par value of each of the issued
existing shares of the Company was reduced from HK$1.00
to HK$0.10 per issued existing share of the Company by the
cancellation of the paid up share capital of the Company
to the extent of HK$0.90 per issued existing share of the
Company by way of a reduction of capital, such that the par
value of the issued existing shares of the Company was
reduced to HK$0.10 each. The credit arising from the Capital
Reduction was transferred to the contributed surplus account
of the Company within the meaning of the Companies
Act and was applied for such purposes as permitted by
all applicable laws and the Memorandum of Continuance
and the New Bye-laws of the Company and as the Board
considers appropriate; and

(iii) Share sub-division — immediately following the Capital
Reduction, each of the authorised but unissued existing
Shares with par value of HK$1.00 each was subdivided into
10 new Shares with par value of HK$0.10 each.

The Capital Reorganisation had become effective after 9:00

m. (Hong Kong time) on 18 April 2019. Details of the above
are set out in the announcements of the Company dated
23 January 2019, 25 January 2019, 11 March 2019, 4 April
2019 and 23 April 2019 and the circular of the Company
dated 4 February 2019.

The Company has completed the Rights Issue on the basis of
two Rights Shares for every one Share held on the Record Date
at the Subscription Price of HK$0.28 per Rights Share to raise
approximately HK$67.15 million before expenses by issuing
239,817,900 Rights Shares to the Qualifying Shareholders.

References were made to (1) the announcements of the Company
dated 18 July 2019, 30 July 2019, 2 August 2019, 13 August
2019, 12 September 2019, 13 September 2019, 18 October 2019,
18 May 2020 and 25 November 2020 respectively, (2) the circular
of the Company dated 21 August 2019 (the “Circular’) and the
poll result announcement of the Company dated 12 September
2019 in relation to, amongst others, the Rights Issue, and (3) the
prospectus of the Company dated 25 September 2019. Unless
otherwise defined, capitalised terms used herein shall have the
same meanings as those defined in the Circular.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZRERAR

Hi -

f\
i
&=

(i) BEAHIE — HBEURBRAT X EHEARAE
BERAEREHTRARM0.90ET  EHA
AAEREETRE KRN EERSK1.008
TTHIRZEO0M0E T » BULARREHTRAR
DEERZ&R0.10E T « RABRMMELEZ
ERCBREERAREEZRNARAEHALR
%‘ﬁ%%%%ﬁﬂ%&@&?ﬁﬁm&ﬁ
AREAFARMAHAREZTER/EENRE
&

(iii) BRI — ZRERAHRZ - FIREE1.00
BILEEERBITHEERGEFRARIORE
A% E{E0.1075 7T K9 37 AR 19 ©
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ARARBHR-_ZT-NAFE-—A=-+=8"

*hi*ﬁ:+£5~:%—h¢zﬂ+—
E«:%—hi@ﬂ@ﬁ&:%—ﬂimﬂ
=AM AERARFRBHAEZ—
F_AMBZBEK -

AAREBRERET  EREHABHERE —
AR AR 17 2 2% W AR 4 AR AR 15 2 = 2B DA B AR 4t AR AR 1n
W%F%om%xmAﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁmgmmm

BRI - BA B R 4067158 BT (0% B A
A1) «

ZRBOAAABBH AR =T -AELA N
B -F-AELA=+A- *?*niﬂﬂf
B Z2-AFNA+=E ZE-AFARTZ
A =F-AFAATZA  =E-AF+ATA

H —Z_ZFAATNBR=_Z_ZF+—H
“tHAAZAM  QFRRABHMAE-_T-NAFN
At —Hz@BH([EE])  ARARAHHAR
:%*ﬂiﬂﬂ+*5ﬁ@(¢ﬁ%M%Z%

RERZ DA &mﬁ“ REBMA-—F—NAFAH
H:+£EZ%H CHREAEREEN  ME
FiT 7R 4l 58 B2 3 u%%m%ﬂﬁﬁﬂ&%



The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
capital structure of the Group comprises all components of
shareholders’ equity.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new
debts, redemption of existing debts or selling assets to reduce
debts. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for
the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it
has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The
Group receives a report from the share registrars monthly
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year. As at 31 December 2020, 72.8% (2019:
72.8%) of the shares were in public hands.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
 E_F_TF+-_A=T—HLEFE

AR B A AR M) B BB BB TE B R SR 25
B ETE  REAEEEHSELE  LH
B R R AR AT 0 IR 3R S 2R o A I 40 B A A
el B SR 35 9 S TR AR A -

AEEBRBERESRANESRENHERD
Bk REBREARAERE AKESBEBIMEK
B BIOHBROERODBARETHEY B
MR EEBILEEENREER  RFEEE
BEAGRE REBEE_FT_TFR_FT—-IF
T-A=+T—HLFER EREXANER K
REBFALEEHEMES -

ME—SNERSE HIEBEARBRKE NREBMRERFHE
BRI ETOML  EARFREZD BK
n#925% - AEEEARIIKRNBFLELRER
FRBZFRENERENREENRS  EETE
FORKBETA2%RE -R_T_TF+_H
=+—H 728%(=ZF—NF :72.8%) B & »
HARFAE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—EZEF —ZT-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt & FER FAE T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MRS 4 10
Rights-of-use assets TREEE 197 475
Investments in subsidiaries M ERaIEE 27 27
Other receivables, deposits and HtwElz ek
prepayments R FIA — 3,000
Loan notes ERZE 19,413 75,913
19,641 79,425
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and His e - &€ KRB RIE
prepayments i 633 20,874
Loan notes EREE 52,245 5,144
Financial assets at FVTPL ZRNAEREBEZERES RN/
BE 46,944 26,806
Financial assets at FVTOCI EAREREMEZ2ERKZET K
L EREE 30,600 29,400
Due from securities brokers fE U 75 5 48 40 SR E 802 12
Amount due from a subsidiary JE Wy — 8 B /B X R] 3k I8 19,264 =
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LB 7,905 28,187
158,393 110,423
Current liabilities nREBEE
Due to securities brokers JE 15 38 5 A8 40 3R H 1,701 2,011
Other payables and accruals H b B 3R fE A B A 732 1,347
Lease liabilities HEA®E 208 282
Shareholder’s loan I&% 3B 3 — —
Amount due to a subsidiary FES — B A R FKIE — 7,421
Promissory notes SN 224 337
2,865 11,398
Net current assets REBEEFE 155,528 99,025
Total assets less current liabilities A& E R A& & & 175,169 178,450
Non-current liabilities kARBAE
Lease liabilities HEAE — 208
Promissory notes ANE 19,920 19,920
19,920 20,128
Net assets BEFE 155,249 158,322
Capital and reserves ﬁzli&fﬁﬁ
Share capital A% A 35,973 35,973
Reserves 1.1% & (a) 119,276 122,349
TOTAL EQUITY R 155,249 158,322
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors R-E-—F-A=-t+HEES=eiERKEET
on 30 March 2021. o
Wu Ming Gai Chan Carman Wing Yan
A 8% £ BR 3 ik
Director Director
EE EZE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BHE_Z-_ZHE+-_A=+—HILFE

Notes: Htat -
(a) Movements in Company’s reserves (a) AARIFEEE
Financial
assets at
Share Contributed FVTOCI Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
BARE
REMEZE
I35 51 Bk 2
R E EARHG LREERE 2t BE “m
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
THT THET TR THT THET
At 1 January 2019 R=ZT—-n&—HF—H 200,377 — 8,676 (201,004) 8,049
Loss and total comprehensive income &R EE K 2 E W= (FX)

(expenses) for the year FEE — — 400 (35,331) (34,931)
Capital reorganisation RAEA (200,377) 107,918 - 200,377 107,918
Rights Issue i 41,313 — — — 41,313
Transfer of reserve HBY G — — 1,824 (1,824) =
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January RZE—AF+= £+ A

2020 _s\:gﬁ —H 41,313 107,918 10,900 (37,782) 122,349
Loss and total comprehensive income £ REE &2 A W= (%)

(expenses) for the year Fak] — — 1,200 (4,273) (3,073)
At 31 December 2020 —Z-_ZF+-fA=1+-H 41,313 107,918 12,100 (42,055) 119,276
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements AEBERFRENEREEHEReBaRA
therein are presented in the consolidated statement thEERERREEERZEEHRATR -

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

Share premium represents the amount by which
the issue price of shares exceeds the par value of
those shares and is distributable to shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Financial assets at FVTOCI reserve represents
the cumulative net change in fair value of equity
investments held at the end of the reporting period
and recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for equity instruments in note 4(f) to
the consolidated financial statements.

(a) The contributed surplus of the Company arose
as a result of the Capital Reorganisation that the
entire amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company was reduced
to nil and the credit arising from such reduction
be transferred to an existing account of the
Company designated as the contributed surplus
account of the Company. Thereafter, the amount
approximately HK$200.4 million standing to the
credit of the contributed surplus account of the
Company was applied in full towards offsetting
the entire amount of the accumulated losses of
the Company; and

(b) the par value of each of the issued shares was
reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.10 per issued
share by the cancellation of the paid up share
capital of the Company to the extent of HK$0.90
per issued share by way of a reduction of capital,
such that the par value of the issued Shares
was reduced to HK$0.10 each. The credit arising
from the Capital Reduction was transferred to
the contributed surplus account of the Company
within the meaning of the Companies Act and
be applied for such purposes as permitted by
all applicable laws and the Memorandum of
Continuance and the Bye-laws of the Company
and as the Board considers appropriate.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZRERAR

BiaEBRERODBTEBEZERG Z
AEZESHE YADRKFAARBRR
BREEEZZSREREBH®E  AQA
ARRTEBREBEEREREEHEIH
R

Th

BARBREMRARSIEZ SBE
ERBRRRIEEA M RRMEAOR
BN T ARANEIHBEERR RS
BARENRERENARERH B

T -

(a) ARREHBBARAEZEMARD =
Ko ARARBREER 22 EBER
ERHRET - B B ER AT E
EZERERERERARAES
BBREZARBRABRP - Hi&
ARRAEBBEBEZERSEY
2004 BB TARBHE HA R A
MEMRABESE Rk

(b) FEHIBB A7 - EHARF G
BRAGRE HEITRMD0.90E T » #
BREZETRMEERESREELT
P17 1.007%8 7T HI B £0.1078 7T © &
it 2 21T ) EE R E 0108
T RAHDRIEE 2 EREBRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
 E_F_TF+-_A=T—HLEFE

BREEFENERAEBZEEFEY
162,750,000 & T (= T — Nu F : 165,716,000

The calculation of net asset value per share is based on the
Group’s net assets of approximately HK$162,750,000 (2019:
HK$165,716,000) divided by the Company’s ordinary shares BTIRBU —_ZE_EF+_A=+—HBR=-Z
in issue of 359,762,850 as at 31 December 2020 and 31 —NLFE+_A=Z+—BARRBERHTEER
December 2019. 359,762,850 % 51 &

As disclosed in notes 21(a), 22 and 23(b) to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group
had subscribed LN2, a loan note with principal
value of HK$27,000,000. The subscription of loan
note was satisfied by way of (i) the disposals of
the consideration receivables with fair value of
approximately HK$7,655,000; and (ii) the disposal of
CB2 with fair value of approximately HK$19,016,000,
respectively as at their respective dates of disposal
(being the date of subscription of LN2), resulting in a
gain on disposal of such arrangement by HK$329,000
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

As disclosed in notes 21(b) and 22 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had
subscribed LN4, a loan note with principal value of
HK$20,000,000. The subscription of loan note was
satisfied by way of (i) the disposals of the deposit
paid for investment as earnest money amounted to
HK$10,000,000 paid by the Group with fair value
of approximately HK$8,622,000 as at the date of
disposal (being the date of subscription of LN4); and
(ii) cash consideration of HK$10,000,000, resulting
in a gain on disposal of such arrangement by
HK$1,378,000 recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2020.

WA S BT 3Rk MY R 21(a) 22 &
23b)FTEE  AEBEERBEERER
2 ERZEAE A27,000,0008 T © R
BEFXEERESBELE A (BIRE
ERZE2BH)E BT AHRNEM : (i)
HERAREL AE7,655,0007%8 T H) FE UK
B R(i)H & A 2 E4% A19,016,0007%
THAERESR2 BEFRBEE_S =%
F+ A=+ HLEFEREEIEZEF
R E % L HE R Wk 25329,00058 7T °

B AR A B TS R 3R MY FE21(b) K 22 B 3
B ASEERBEREE4L BEXREE
A% 420,000,000/ 7T - REERZEE
BBATHREMN - (R EEBH (AR
BERZR4AHEEARRESIFHE
& (EAAREBE XM HE 410,000,000
HBIT)  AAREHX 58,622,000 T K&
(i) 10,000,000/5 ;L B & K E + EH R
HE_Z-_ZF+_A=+—RBIFE
REEBEETERALEZLT N R E
1,378,000/ Tt °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

As disclosed in notes 21(b), 22 and 23 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had
acquired 1,120,000 shares of Winchester, its shares
listed in the U.S., with fair value of approximately
HK$25,334,000 as at the acquisition date. The
acquisition was satisfied by way of (i) the disposals
of the deposit paid for investment as earnest money
amounted to HK$5,500,000 paid by the Group with
fair value of approximately HK$4,742,000; and (ii)
the disposals of LN1 with fair value of approximately
HK$24,207,000, respectively as at their respective
dates of disposal (being the date of acquisition of
1,120,000 shares of Winchester), resulting in a loss
on disposal of such arrangement by HK$3,615,000
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

As disclosed in notes 22, 23(b) and 24 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group
had subscribed LN3 with principal value of
HK$33,000,000. The subscription of LN3 was
satisfied by way of (i) the disposals of LN1, LN2, and
LN3 as previously defined in 2019’s annual report
with fair values of approximately HK$9,186,000
in total; (ii) the disposal of CB1 with fair value of
approximately HK$19,314,000; and (iii) disposal of
the equity interest HF Finance Limited with fair value
of approximately HK$4,500,000 respectively as at
their respective dates of disposal.

The Group had disposed of 39.25% of a private equity
fund at consideration of approximately HK$9,000,000,
which is to be settled by 18 equal instalments of
HK$500,000 each. The consideration receivable is
recorded under “other receivables” at 31 December
2019.
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N AR A B RS R 5k BT sE21(b) ~ 22F023
Fr#HE A&EBEERAREBHKERD
Jo 18 49 7 25,334,000 76 7T £ 1,120,000
f&Winchesterf& 15+ 52 I 15 R E B
meZWERESAHE B HAKE
1,120,000 f%XWinchesterf% 17 & B Hi)
FERATAHARERM (HEAEEX
NHEEWERAAEBEZINNBEES
5,500,000/ Jr) * A b {E 494,742,000
7 ¢ R(ii)H & 2 B 4 524,207,000
THEREEl BRREE_T_TF
T A=+ BLEFERGEIEBERE
R E %L YR E183,615,000/5 7T ©

WMANERE B IS TR R M 5E22 « 23(b) R 24 Ff
BT AEECRBERZRI A€ A
33,000,000/ 7 - REERZERINE S
BEEEEHEBRBUTHAREN  ()HE
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H & R R EH 54,500,000 T Y FE 13 BF
BHERDA K BKRE -

7K % [ LA 5 15 500,0008 7T 2 18 58 5
H&E  K{E 4% A9,000,000% THE
39.25%MFLEED - ZEKRARBR=2Z
—NWE+=—A=+—HB:t Al ERK
B o



The table set forth below is the detail changes in the
Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash

For the year ended 31 December 2020
 E_F_TF+-_A=T—HLEFE

TRAXEBERNBERDELNEEEDF
B ERASKIRSEY KERELD
MEERERERECKRRKRASRENS
RAEEHEARERERDBRKRARER

flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash

flows from financing activities.

Lease liabilities MEAR
Promissory notes (Note 29) &t & (#1:#29)

Shareholder’s loan REER
Lease liabilities HERE
Promissory notes (Note 29) & Z(f:729)

1 January
2020
ZECZ2E
-R-H
HK$’000
TR

490
20,257

20,747

1 January
2019
ZZ-NF
—A—H
HK$'000
TR
31,710

275
20,754

52,739

FHRERENZEFEE -

Interest 31 December

Cash flows Addition charges 2020
SEREE

ReRE "B FEER A=t+-H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TER TET TET TERT
(300) - 18 208
(1,492) — 1,379 20,144
(1,792) - 1,397 20,352
Interest 31 December

Cash flows Addition charges 2019
“E-NETZ

HEmE NE HMEEHR A=+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TAT
(33,936) — 2,226 —
(355) 556 14 490
(1,814) — 1,317 20,257
(36,105) 556 3,557 20,747
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-TF+_A=1+—HIEFE

2020
—2-FF
HK$’000
FTERT

18
282

2020
—g-%%
HK$°000
FER

300
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(@) On 29 February 2016, the Company entered into an

investment management agreement (“Investment
Management Agreement”) with Tiger Securities Asset
Management Company Limited (“Tiger Securities”),
pursuant to which Tiger Securities has agreed to act as
the investment manager of the Company and to provide
investment management services to the Company for a
period of two years commencing from 1 March 2016 and
expiring on 28 February 2018.

According to the Investment Management Agreement,
Tiger Securities shall be entitled to a management fees
of 0.5% per annum on the net asset value as per the
management account of the Company of the preceding
month with an annual cap of HK$1,800,000.

On 24 November 2016, the Company entered into a
supplemental investment management agreement
(“Supplemental Investment Management Agreement”)
with Tiger Securities, pursuant to which, with effect from
1 January 2017, management fees as set out in the
Investment Management Agreement shall be changed
from 0.5% per annum on the net asset value as per the
management account of the Company of the preceding
month with an annual cap of HK$1,800,000 to 1% per
annum on the net asset value as per the management
account of the Company of the preceding month with an
annual cap of HK$2,980,000. Save as above changed,
all other terms and conditions set forth in the Investment
Management Agreement shall remain unchanged, in full
force and effect.

On 28 February 2018, the Company entered into a
renewal agreement with Tiger Securities to renew
the investment management services period from 28
February 2018 to 28 February 2019.

On 28 February 2019 and 28 August 2019, the Company
entered into renewal agreements with Tiger Securities
respectively, to renew the investment management
services period from 28 February 2019 to 31 August 2019
and further extended to 29 February 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BT _EFTA=T—BHLEFE

(a) B\_; ANE_A-+TNB AREEFER

BHEEERBRARUREESFATL
&éa@%mﬂ&ﬁ%@%mb’%%’i
FRFORRABEEARA 2 REEE AN
RBARARHKETERYE B _F X
FZA-HAEREMEE_ZT - N\F_H
iy WAL= =

REREEEDGSE FTRIEFAUES
ﬂﬁﬂi—ﬂﬂméﬁﬁﬁ¢%§§@@
AETFOS%C ERE  FHRE2FLRA
1,800,0007% 7T °

RZF—R"F+—A=+WMA  AARHEZE
ERAFFVERREEERB((HARE
EBBZE] B BZE—tF—HA—H
BOREEEREAANMSZEREZHALA
AEH E—EAANEERRBEPNEEFE
HEEHF0.5% 5@ 2F ERA1,800,000%
T RARRAREY EF—EAAMNERKEH
MEEFEFTESF1% BEE2FELEA
2,980,000/ 7t ° fr Fai i Bh 4N - B B 1B
ek A PTE 2 FT B H A0 R R AIG G AS 4= T
g2 BEH+TRBMAORER -

2 A¢ ﬂ +AHI_7 ﬂﬁ_

RZBE—NF_A-_F+NBERZZE—AEN
AZ+N\B  ARAlSflEREESFIVE
B BEEREEERGHEBE-_Z=— AN
F-_A=-+N\BE=ZZF—-—hLENA=+—H
WiE—PEPE—T_FF_A=+N1H -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-Z_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

(a)

(Continued)

With effective from 1 September 2019, management fee
to Tiger Securities shall be changed from 1% per annum
on the net asset value as per the management account of
the Company of the preceding month to 0.8% per annum
on the net asset value as per the management account
of the Company of the preceding month with unchanged
annual cap at HK$2,980,000.

On 28 February 2020 and 7 December 2020, the
Company entered into renewal agreements with Tiger
Securities respectively, to renew the investment
management services period from 29 February 2020 to 31
August 2020 and further extended to 28 August 2021.

Mr. Wu Ming Gai, an executive director of the Company,
is a director and responsible officer of Tiger Securities.

The management fees and incentive fee paid and payable
to Tiger Securities are as follows:

Tiger Securities: REHE
Management fees

The above management fees paid or payable to Tiger
Securities are continuing connected transactions (“CCT”)
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but
regarded as de minimis transaction pursuant to Rule
14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules as the CCT had fulfill the
relevant requirements.

Remuneration of key management personnel of the Group
representing amounts paid to the Company’s executive
directors is disclosed in note 15(c) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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BT NFhLhA— A& ZTEEEFENFE
BEER L BAAAAREEEREHREE
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The following is a list of subsidiaries at 31 December 2020:

For the year ended 31 December 2020
 E_F_TF+-_A=T—HLEFE

R-E-_ZTF+-_A=+—BZHBARFBW
™

Particulars of

Place of Principal activities issued share
Name of subsidiary incorporation and place of operation capital Interest held
MELE BB &F B 37 3t B TEXBREXEME EBRTHRAFE FrRs R
IT Star Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in 1 ordinary share 100
Hong Kong of US$1
RERUHS BEERBE 1REE1E T
Z BB
Datacom Venture Limited British Virgin Islands Inactive in Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100
of US$1
RERELHES TER/BE 1IREE1E T
2 EmR
Studio V Hong Kong Inactive in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100
BB TER/ BB 10,0007 7T

*  Shares held directly by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries issued any debt securities at the end
of the reporting period.

Since early 2020, the epidemic of Coronavirus Disease 2019
(the “COVID-19 outbreak”) has spread across China and
other countries and it has affected the business and economic
activities of the Group as well as the Group’s investees to
some extent. The overall financial effect cannot be reliably
estimated as of the approval date of these consolidated
financial statements. The Group will closely monitor the
development of the COVID-19 outbreak and continue to
evaluate its impact on the business, the financial position and
operating results of the Group.

* OARRBEEERAEZBRD

RBEBRR  SRBRARLEETEMERE

BEZZE_ZTFYUR HEATRRSERE
(fCOVID-19/2 % NE R A B R EMmBEIREL -
WE—ERELVETASERAREEFREREAR
AIMERREELTD BEZSREVERRD
HHEBH  WEXAIEGTEEWBETE - A&
Ei5 %I /ECOVID- 19 ZEMERBR - W
BT HEHAEEER FERARKCEEED

S
2 o
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Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—-HLEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
“E-RFE ZT—+tF —T-)\F ZT-NF ZEBZEZHF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
THET TET TET TET TER

Results: g
(Loss) profit attributable to owners of 7R &I H A FE1L (B8 )%
the Company il (194,959)  (205,508)  (78,458)  (35,361) (4,166)
Year ended 31 December
BZt-HA=1+—-HLEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—E-RF ZE—tF ZE-N\F ZT-NF ZBZEF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET TAET T FHET FER
Assets and liabilities: BEERAE:
Current assets MENEE 415,572 220,239 151,217 110,423 138,921
Total assets BEBTE 415,657 220,268 196,846 189,821 185,535
Current liabilities REAE 33,835 25,314 41,535 3,977 2,865
Total liabilities BEREE 35,415 45,534 61,455 24,105 22,785
Shareholders’ funds BRE S 380,242 174,734 135,391 165,716 162,750
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